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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEhEEBEERASEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 80, is the founder of
the Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(R AWM EZ B) and was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a Cambodian
Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong Kong company in 1968
as an importing agent for watch distribution business in Cambodia, had
extensive experience of distributing watches in Cambodia and Vietnam.
Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna and Mr. Eav Feng
Ming, Jonathan and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and a controlling
shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan (former name was Mr. Eav Ming
Keong, Kinson), aged 45, holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Interior
Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree in Art, Design
and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University. After
graduation, he practiced in an architecture firm in London for 2 years.
He was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 22nd
November 2006 and acted as a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company before his resignation from the Board of Directors
on 21st August 2015 as he wanted to devote more time for his
personal business at that time. Mr. Eav has remained as a consultant
of the Company and its subsidiaries since 21st August 2015. He
was appointed as a director of three subsidiaries of the Company in
February, April and May 2018, respectively and he was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 11th October 2018. Mr. Eav is a
son of Mr. Eav Yin, who is the Chairman, an Executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav is the brother of Ms.
Eav Xin Qi Rosanna, who is an Executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Eav Xin Qi Rosanna (former name was Eav Guech Rosanna),
aged 50, holds a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree in
Marketing from Adelphi University in the U.S.A. She is currently the
chief executive officer of Time City (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. Before joining the Group in 1993, she worked in a major
international US Bank specializing in local corporate companies. Ms.
Eav is a daughter of the Chairman, Executive Directors and controlling
shareholder of the Company, Mr. Eav Yin and is the sister of Mr. Eav
Feng Ming, Jonathan, who is an Executive Director of the Company.
She was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 21st
August 2015.

4| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 62, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai is an existing
independent non-executive director of Guorui Properties Limited which
was listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 7th July
2014. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 50, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted
to both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in
1993. She was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 16th December 2006. She is also a member of
the nomination committee, the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. She resigned as the independent non-
executive director and member of the nomination committee, the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company on 20th
July 2020.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 50, has 29 years experience in
accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a firm of Certified
Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 16th December 2006. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and also a member of the
audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 52, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has more than 20 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIBE 515w N R ifr
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS HRIBE
2020 2019 Change
—E-EF —ZE-NEF )
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B & BT
Operations re
Revenue BEUA 800 935 (14)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners BENRNARARFZEAEAZ (146) 70 N/A
of the Company (E18) /#7 TEA

(Loss)/earnings per share — Basic B (EB1B) A BF—EX (19.56) HK cents ' 9.03 HK cents N/A
(19.56) &1l 9.037 Il T8 A
Interim dividend declared and paid BE M &Ik Z R RS - = =
Final dividend proposed after HEHRBRESDIRE 2 RS - 19 -
the end of the reporting period
Special dividend proposed after REHRRBEFIRE 2 FRIKE - = =
the end of the reporting period
2020 2019 Change
—E-EF —ZE-NEF #E
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B & B
Financial position B 3 AR 5
Total assets BEE 807 816 (1)
Equity attributable to EERNARAFA AR 343 523 (34)

owners of the Company
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business Review

The Group’s revenue for the year amounted to HK$800 million which
was 14% lower than HK$935 million in last year. The “Sale of watches”
segment continued to play a key role this year but slightly decreased its
revenue by 15% from HK$925 million to HK$787 million this year due to
the reduction of revenue in the store in Hong Kong. On the other hand,
the business in the “Properties leasing” segment remained stable and
derived a revenue of HK$8 million this year.
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The total number of stores is as below: EREAT
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2020 2019
R-B-2F RZT—NEF
=ZA=+-8B =A=+-=8
Beijing bR 2 2
Shanghai 5 3 3
Xiamen = 1 0
Nantong R 1 0
Chengdu R 0 1
Hong Kong B 1 1
8 7
Financial Review fil 7% [0 Ga
Results review Ev- =)
For the year ended 31st March 2020, the Group’s revenue amounted to HEZTZ _ZTF=A=+—HIFE AEBEZE%

HK$800 million, representing a slightly decrease of 14% as compared
with HK$935 million in last year. Decrease in revenue was mainly due
to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic happened in February 2020
which seriously affected the sales of the retail store in Hong Kong
despite a new line of watch movement business was launched in
Hong Kong before. Gross profit margin decreased by 5 % to 25% as
compared with last year due to additional stock provision made during
the year.

Distribution costs this year amounted to HK$161 million which was 9%
lower than HK$177 million in last year. Such decrease was due to the
decrease in entertainment expense and sales commission for the year.

Administrative expenses increased by 15% to HK$47 million as
compared with HK$41 million in last year which was mainly due to the
increase in staff related expenses and consultancy fee which was offset
partially by the decrease in bank charges.

Valuation losses on investment properties amounted to HK$17 million
in this year as compared with valuation gains of HK$0.8 million in last
year as the property markets in Hong Kong and London were affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Finance costs amounted to HK$14 million in this year which was much
higher than that of last year amounting to HK$2 million was due to
increase in bank borrowings and the interest on lease liabilities which
was newly effective in this year.

AT TR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

An impairment loss of HK$20 million was made for the gourmet
business due to the unforeseen business environment in the near
future.

Further to the announcement of the Company dated 19th March 2020,
the Group was informed by a major supplier to its retail store in Hong
Kong that the supply will extend to mid-February 2021. However, as the
recoverable amount of this business is less than the carrying amount
of its assets, impairment loss totalling HK$103 million was made during
the year which significantly increased the loss incurred by the Group
this year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2020, the Group’s total cash balance (including short-
term deposits and structured deposits) amounted to HK$69 million
(31st March 2019: HK$102 million).

Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total borrowings
over total equity, was 47% as at 31st March 2020 (81st March 2019:
25%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs.

The Group monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risks and, when
it considers necessary and appropriate, will hedge its foreign exchange
risks by using financial instruments.

Prospect

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$149 million as compared with a
net profit of HK$70 million in last year, was due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic which not only affected the sales in Hong Kong
and China but also the valuation of our key investment properties
located in Hong Kong and London.

The Group operates 8 stores in Hong Kong and China. The Group
remained focus on its core stores and has streamlined their operating
costs during the year and will continue to do so with a view to further
enhance the cost efficiency of each store. The overall sentiment in the
luxury retail business was still weak in Hong Kong and but that in China
is recovering. Looking ahead, the Group believes that the sentiment will
improve as the pandemic is under control.

Apart from the “Sale of watches” segment which continues to be the
core business of the Group, the Group is also developing its business
in the “Properties leasing” segment and acquired two residential
properties in London in last year in addition to the key investment
properties located in Hong Kong.

The Group is determined to rebuild its financial strength and confidence
to improve its business and take a cautious approach in its future
expansion.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive
support of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 19 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2020 and the
state of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 42 to 44.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2020
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 11.

Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 and 11 of this annual report. An analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 and 11 of this annual report.
SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Details of the dividends are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

12| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited
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RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and
movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2020, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 39% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 99% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
23% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 168.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the statues, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/
her office. The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE8RS
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Eav Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry (resigned on 7th August 2019)
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-law of the Company, Mr. Lai Si Ming
and Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna shall retire by rotation from office at the
Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible and offer themselves for
re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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RAE2SRMREMRERMB2HER

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BEER BESGCORT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 02BTEER R4 48 %E

EEnE EEME HERGOGHA BRBEDL

%

Mr. Eav Yin B st Note it it 444,201,236 59.45

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna HEifeZ Personal {f A 812,136~ 0.11

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan 1556 5 Personal & A 1,807,275® 0.24

Mr. Lai Si Ming BRREE Personal {f A 183,312* 0.02

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TAGFLZT Personal & A 183,312* 0.02

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEFLE Personal 1E A 183,312* 0.02
Note: Among the 444,201,236 shares in which Mr. Eay Yin is deemed to have Hlit © BEEERBEBEFEALNPEENER AHEHEZR 2

interests under the SFO (a) 31,669,300 shares are personal interest of
Mr. Eav Yin of which 1,466,500 shares are share options, (b) 7,379,600
shares are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse of Mr. Eav Yin), (c)
291,210,668 shares by Century Hero International Limited, (d) 932,400
shares by Debonair Company Limited, (e) 51,133,864 shares by Goodideal
Industrial Limited, (f) 1,275,336 shares by Hexham International Limited, (g)
1,423,268 shares by Goodness Management Limited and (h) 59,176,800
shares by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An
Unit Trust). Century Hero International Limited, Debonair Company Limited,
Hexham International Limited, and Goodness Management Limited are
wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav
Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is the
founder, the beneficiaries include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife and their children.

All the interests are related to the share options held by the respective
Directors.

All the 812,136 shares are personal interest of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna.

All the 1,807,275 shares are personal interest of Mr. Eav Feng Ming,
Jonathan of which 1,099,875 shares are share options.

444,201,2360% &5 F + (a) 31,669,300/% iz 17 (H
H11,466,5000% S BBRRE) BIEC tE 2 AR
(b) 7,379,600/ IR B #h & Bl + (B kA& 2 B
%) 48 i (c) 291,210,668/ & (D AL HBEBRE B R A
Al#5 A ¢ (d) 932,4000% fi% {5 FaDebonair Company
Limited# & : (e) 51,138,864/ % 1 AGoodideal
Industrial Limited# & ; (f) 1,275,336/% f% 7 A
Hexham International Limited$5 745 : (g) 1,423,268
% §% {5 1 Goodness Management Limited## A&
K (h) 59,176,800/% fi% {5 FHChanchhaya Trustee
Holding Corporation (£ &Eav An Unit TrustZ 55t
AN) A o B AR A F - Debonair Company
Limited * Hexham International Limited 2 Goodness
Management Limited¥ i EEEZEHE - M
Goodideal Industrial Limited 5= %4 H87% °
Eav An Unit Trust 3 2HE(EFE - B R ERZIERZ
BN XmABEGRCEE  HETFTRESZFX -

AR ERERRE 2 BRERR -

FiE812,1360% 17 19 B 5 an 1 X LB A o

FrE1,807,275 IR D19 EI51E 84 St £ A A MRS - Hop
1,099,8750% f& (5 /# BE AR ## -
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Save as disclosed herein and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME”, as at 31st March 2020, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31st March 2020, which may also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 38 to the
financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions
are exempted from reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS”, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”).
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The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been expired on 20th September —EE_FEREFIAER_E——-FhLAZ-T+HBE
2012 and no new share option scheme has been adopted thereafter. N W AR ST B R AN o

The Company issued 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 share options to the

WoF——#=A=+—AR-F-——F+A_+x

qualifying grantees to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in H ARQBIRE-—_ZSZ _FERETE - r‘j/\ B g e
the share capital of the Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme % ¥ % #£77146,800,0001) %.34,170,00017 A RE A

on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 of which the exercise
prices were HK$0.394 per share and HK$0.263 per share respectively.
Upon the completion of the share consolidation and rights issue in
January 2013 and February 2013, the original numbers of issued share
options were adjusted from 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 to 43,056,440
and 10,022,061 respectively. In addition, both the exercise prices and
the numbers of share options have been adjusted according to the
2002 Share Option Scheme. After the completion of the further share
consolidation in July 2018, both the exercise price and the numbers
of the outstanding share options had been adjusted according to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme. As of 31st March 2020, the
outstanding amount of share options was 5,975,983.

As at 31st March 2020, the Directors and employees of the Company

Tﬁxmtﬂtﬂxooz,%yzz %szﬁﬁﬁxﬁé HEiTEE
2Bl A& R0.39478 T 0.263 e — T —=F— 8
&:%?f—i AzRBROhEMRERTXE  RE %
TEEIL S B » 51l F146,800,00015 £.34,170,00017 &
/43,056,440 510,022,06115 ° th4h - R - T F
TR E BRENTEERRELCEELH
B-R_E—NFLATKE—FTRDEHE - K17
FEREZITEERBE L RBERESEZIER
AR - R-ZZ_ZTF-_A=+—H BRTEZER
# /35,975,9831) °

E’\\\_?_—\li A=+ —RA ALAEENRBTHE

had the following interests in share options to subscribe for shares UTIRBAAR T _FERETE L,(TEE{JQ{“
of the Company (market value per share at 31st March 2020 was ?X—FZEﬁj]ﬂg% DEADNTZERG (R_BE-_FF
HK$0.41) granted for a nominal consideration under the 2002 Share =A=+—H lﬂxﬁﬂﬁ 704178 7T) © % Hxﬁi@%#i
Option Scheme of the Company. The share options are unlisted. Each &S B NERELATIEEAREARALT2ET
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary —Hxﬂtﬁj]ng*ﬂ
share of HK$0.2 of the Company.
No. of shares
No. of share acquiredon  No. of share
options exercise of options
outstanding No. of share No. of share share  outstanding
at the options options options at the Period Period
beginning of granted forfeited during end of during which during which
the year during during the year the year share options share options Exercise
£9 the year the year FRifE X are vested are exercisable price
Directors BARST R EREHE ERHZ BREES  WROEN  Date of grant 3 ] e per share
£ BREYR BREHE BREHE ZRBEE - BREZE RLpH ERENER BRENER BRIEE
Mr. Eav Yin 1,466,500 - - - 1,466,500 31st March 2011 30th March 201210 30th March 2012 to HKS$2.688
i3 “F--F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 268877
ZA=1-A CT-CESASTHECR-CECASTRE
ZE-AEZRZTR Z5--5-R=1H
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan 1,099,875 - - - 1,009,875 31st March 2011 30th March 2012t0  30th March 2012 to HK$2.688
kst —F--F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 2688570
ZA=1-8 Z3-CFZASTHE 23 ZE-R-THE
“E-AEZRZtE ZB--EZAZ1E
Mr. Lai Si Ming 183,312 - - - 183,312 31st March 2011 30th March 2012t0~ 30th March 2012 to HKS$2.688
BERLE ZF-F 30 th March 2016 30th March 2021 26887
Zh=1-8 % _E F-tAZ _3--E-f-tRE
“T-REZf=1H ZTZ*EEHE‘\'H
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline 183,312 - - - 183,312 st March 2011 30th March 2012t0 30th March 2012 to HK$2.688
IEFRt —F--F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 268850
ZA=1-8 “Z--F=A=tRE-EF--F=f=1RZ
ZE-REZAZTH Zf:*ﬁzﬂzfﬁ
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent 183,312 - - - 183,312 31st March 2011 30th March 2012t0  30th March 2012 to HKS$2.688
EEEE F-F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 2688
ZAZt-8 “F-ZFZACTRECE-CEZACTRE
ZE-REZRSTR ZEC-§ZACHH
Employees 4113501 - (1,253,855) - 2,859,672 31st March 2011 30th March 2012t0 30th March 2012 to HK$2.688
81 —F--F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 268850
=R=+-H T5-CE-R-TAZ C5-CE-R-TRE
“E-REZAZTR -3--EZfA=tH
Total 7,229,838 - 1,253,855) - 5,975,983
&3t
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The share options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant
of the share options on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 were
HK$0.39 and HK$0.26 respectively.

During the year, 1,253,855 share options were forfeited under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

In addition to the share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme as disclosed herein, on 13th September 2010, the
shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a share
award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”). The Share Award Plan
2010 is a ten-year discretionary share award and ownership plan. It is
primarily for encouraging or facilitating the holding of shares by those
selected employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new shares are or
will be awarded. The Directors will make use of the plan to award new
shares to those selected employees of the Group on suitable terms as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st
March 2020 and there was no issue or exercise of any such other
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS TERRZIELS

RZZBEZTHF=ZA=1+—H BAALRIGEERE
ZITHRABRA - TIAL(RRABESHEETHRA
BRI RARE 2D AR EE R AR DB
TRAS%HE L - ZRBESF LA KRHIEXVEE2R
INHZIENEMAATEE KD BERAREAER
ZEBERMAIRRE R LB KRIIEIBCKRAETHAE 21

As at 31st March 2020, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of

the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by WmIKE
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:
Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares held issued share
BESKR.2E T capital
Name of shareholder Notes ZER EERITRA
KRR B Bt 2 HEROEHE BHEDL
%
Mdm. Lam Kim Phung e BlEZ+ 1 444,201,236 59.45
Century Hero International IR PR B BR A 7] 2 291,210,668 38.98
Limited
Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding 3 59,176,800 7.92
Corporation Corporation
Covenbhills Limited Covenbhills Limited 4 64,255,243 8.60
Goodideal Industrial Limited Goodideal Industrial Limited 5 51,133,864 6.84
Notes: iz

These shares include 7,379,600 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 436,821,636 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

1. WERMF7,379,6000 D EMNEBE L LATE - ik
436,821,636/ i 7 Al 51— % & (M & Bl 22+ 2 B B)
Al B AEZERRERN LN ESTREETR
ABRED - BERND REHFPZERIA -

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is 2. HWHBRBRARHBLEELZERE BLEENR
also a director of this company. BRRIZESE

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav. An Unit Trust, a 3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation& 2 # {5t
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife Eav An Unit TrustZ X5t A ZErt 2 Zm ABEBC
and their children. fE-HEFTRESZFL -

4. Covenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late 4. Covenhills LimitedE B MR BEEEZEET @A
Mr. Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and Leong Lum Thye’t & * Leong Yoke Kheng/J\fH &
Mr. Leong Siew Khuen. Leong Siew Khuen%t £ A ©

5.  Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is a director 5.  Goodideal Industrial Limitedf#5{- X £HE87% @ 15

of this company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

CRETAZRFZIESE -

EXFRBEZMBEERERARBRND ZIFR -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2020, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 151 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2020. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and
shares under share award plan are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

Environmental policies

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection and
sustainable development. The conscientious use of resources and the
adoption of best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations
and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to its
employees. Several measures have been implemented by the Group in
order to promote environmental protection, including, among others:

(i) promoting energy saving by encouraging its staff to switch off
all air-conditioners and lightings before leaving the office, and to
utilise the timer-control function of all air-conditioning systems;

(i)  reducing energy consumption by using energy-saving light bulbs
in the corridors and the reception area of its offices;
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(iiiy promoting recycling by placing recycle bins next to printers for
collecting used papers for reusing and recycling purposes, and by
encouraging two-sided printing and/or the use of scratch papers;

(iv) reducing the use of disposable products by, for example,
cancelling the distribution of plastic bags in office; and

(v) reducing water consumption by replacing all water taps by
automatic faucets in offices.

The environmental, social and governance report will be uploaded
within three months after the publication of the annual report of the
Company to the websites of both The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Company.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets of
the Group and the Group strictly complies with the labour laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and regularly reviews the existing staff
benefits for improvement. The Group provides good quality services to
the customers and maintains a good relationship with them. The Group
is able to establish trusting and long-standing business relationships
with the major customers. The Group also maintains effective
communication and develops long-term and stable relationships
with its suppliers. During the year, there was no material dispute or
disagreement between the Group and its customers or suppliers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31st March 2020 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the mainland China, Switzerland and Hong Kong that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Donations

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.

Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the Memorandum of
Association and New Bye-Laws of the Company, dividends may be
paid out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other factors
which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant from
time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and payment
of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the historical
declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the absolute
discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company does not
have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2020 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE
The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2020 except for the deviation from the code provisions
A.4.1 and D.1.4 and those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as provided in the Bye-Laws. As the Company is bound by
the provision of the 1989 Act, at this time, the Bye-Laws cannot be
amended to fully reflect the requirements of the Code. As such, a
special resolution was passed at the special general meeting held on
28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of the Company so that, inter
alia, (i) every director (save for a director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) of the Company shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years; (ii) a director may be removed
by an ordinary resolution in general meeting instead of a special
resolution; and (iii) any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, instead of the next annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Eav Yin,
the Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting. The
Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive officer
is divided between the remaining executive directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are not less
exacting than those in the Code.

PREIBHS

EEREGEN

RRABNBEBRSEENESE AUV AMEE
HARRZ2BRRERERBEEERR KT 20
XEREH o

RBE_T_TF-_A=1t—RLFE ARFZET

BHEHARZAERARES LiRA ([ LmRA ) M

8+ ERSTRI ([P ]) PR ey AT A 7 RIS - HE
ES

< BIR SCA 4R ED.A 415 DA T2 T3t 2 1 B & B 51

AARRBREFMR L EETEHELEBERA
RIZFLAAR » A FIE1989F 1 7]k X ([ 19894 7%
= ]) c RIF1989F A F3(e)k - ETHMITERBRES
BEENESHERBEARMAAEEAREAFRE
FEWERME c ARARAZ1989F AR ZIEXHR -
ﬁﬁﬂ%k*‘ﬂﬁw'u%i&%WWZﬁm [
11 ARIY: /N B = +Aaﬁﬁ2k%%%
ﬁAt@L—E%%&éﬁ HEWA NGIEEURE
Hme (EFeE) (BEAR ﬂ%$CT@%%EI
BRESREBEESR)ROB=FHRERE IR (ii)
ARBREAS FELTBRBERMIEFIASRERE
T R(iNVEESE LT EMBRTRIEATILES
WEMNES FHBEEE T —ERRERE AL Mk
—ERERAFARE -

RRARBOGEERER BEFTSZRBLCELEEH
E=ZgHER  REARANETAHRE B8 B E&x
PEZF-RARARRZERBEAG LRETEER
EMTEER - HARBRERBF RS LEREE -
BEERERTRE MOTRAEZ BRI RS T 2T
B=NE-

o

TIIF

SFRIZTRAEXAAABRT R TESEBIETT
B WEBESER-

FR - ARBZIFATESLEIEETH  BEREA
REZ R 7%%?¢t*¢ﬁ@ﬁ& R M AR BR
BERELEE - Bt ARFARRDERAREHIA
%ﬁK@ﬂZﬁ%am%ﬁlT&#%%m%%%

Annual Report 2020 |23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PREIBWS

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. Company should have formal letters
of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointments.

The Company has not entered into any written letters of appointment
with its Directors. However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors
have already been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to
directors of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to
act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions; and (iii) the current
arrangement has been adopted by the Company for several years and
has proven to be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the
Directors are able to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective
manner under the current arrangement.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner. The Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices by emphasising a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, transparency and
accountability to all the shareholders of the Company.

Compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors of Listed Issuers

All Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.
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The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 9 Board regular meetings
(including 4 regular board meetings) were held. Moreover, 2 Audit
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Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings and 2 MAFTHEZESERZRMAREEZESES SR SEF
Nomination Committee meetings were held during the year. The RzEez 2 FELSETIHAT
individual attendance of Directors in these meetings was set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
BEEpE E=g8r ERZEEER FHzEEg REZEES
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Eav Yin BLxE 9/9 N/A i F 2/2 2/2
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRELE
(resigned on 7th August 2019) (R=ZT—NFNALHET) 5/6 N/AT i A N/AT i Fi N/AT i
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan 15 I& &k k4 8/9 N/AT i F N/AT it A N/AT i
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna mail it 9/9 N/AT i A N/A i N/AT i
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lai Si Ming BERLE 9/9 2/2 2/2 2/2
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TRFLT 8/9 1/2 1/2 2/2
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TENEAE 9/9 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. Eav Yin, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. Duong AAREEBCAELBEBHEELRE BHELTRE

Ming Chi, Henry, Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna and Mr. Eav Feng Ming,
Jonathan who are both Executive Directors of the Company. Save as
disclosed herein, there is no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationship among members of the Board or between the
Chairman and the chief executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

2
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set .up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Eav Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors, appoint of new
executive director and make recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of directors.

NOMINATION POLICY
1. OBJECTIVE

This policy was approved and adopted by the board of directors
of the Company (“the Board”) by resolution passed on 23rd
November 2018. It sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or re-
elected as directors of the Company.
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NOMINATION CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship:

. Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company'’s business and corporate strategy;

o Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board;

. Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the listing rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited applicable to the Company (the “Listing
Rules”) and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules;

o Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business or as suggested by the Board.

NOMINATION PROCESS

3.1. Nomination by the Nomination Committee

3.1.1 The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board periodically and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal vacancy or
appoint an additional director, the Nomination
Committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the Committee, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out in section 2;

3.1.3 If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable);
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3.1.4 The Nomination Committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment;

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

3.2. Re-election of Director at Annual General Meeting

3.2.1 In accordance with the Company’s New Bye-Laws,
every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and shall be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting;

3.2.2 The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director. The Nomination Committee shall also
review the expertise and professional qualifications of
the retiring director, who offered himself/herself for re-
election at the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in section 2;

3.2.3 Based on the review made by Nomination Committee,
the Board shall make recommendations to
shareholders on candidates standing for re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company, and
provide the available biographical information of the
retiring director in accordance with the Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make the informed decision
on the re-election of such candidates at annual
general meeting of the Company.

3.3. Nomination by shareholders

The shareholders of the Company may propose a
person for election as a director in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and New Bye-Laws of the
Company and applicable law, details of which are set out in
the “Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as director of the Company” of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated during the
year in line with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement
effective from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management and to ensure that
they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee
Tat Cheung, Vincent.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/her
own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to approve
the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2020, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,270,000 (2019: HK$1,330,000) and HK$380,000 (2019:
HK$344,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee on 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.
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PREIBWS

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group and to review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
34 to 41 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems to ensure that their
effectiveness.

The Company has established a risk management policy set out the
process of identification, evaluation and management of the principal
risks affecting the business. The Company has also established a
whistle-blowing policy and system for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters.

As an ongoing process, the management has regular meetings with
the team to assess and handle the risk being identified in the daily
operation of the business. Significant risk will be reported to the
Board on a timely basis. The Board will review and assess the risk
management and internal control systems at least once a year.
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During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department to carry out the internal audit function of the Group, it
had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group including material controls over financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. After the review,
the Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure of Inside
Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures
for handling and dissemination of inside information. With those
guidelines and procedures, the Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board to
decide about the need for disclosure.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 26th September 2019
respectively, all directors (except Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline) were
present to answer questions raised by shareholders and a separate
resolution was proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The
Company announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed
under the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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PREIBWS

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting
out the Proposal; and (ii) a written notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below which had been attended during the year:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2.  review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 42 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, combined with the significant degree of judgement made by
the management associated with determining the net realisable value
(“NRV”).

As disclosed in note 2(k) to the consolidated financial statements,
NRV represents the estimated selling prices for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. The management’s estimation of the NRV is primarily based
on the condition of the inventories, market conditions and latest
available sales information and other factors as detailed in note
4(b) to the consolidated financial statements. These estimations
are subject to uncertainty as a result of change of market trends,
customer preferences and competitor actions. As at 31st March
2020, the carrying amount of the inventories (net of write-down) was
HK$195,992,000.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation of the inventories included:

o Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s policy for making
allowance for watches and management’s process in identifying
slow-moving watches and determining the write-down for
watches;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the inventory aging
report;

. Assessing whether the provision for inventories at the end of
the reporting period was consistent with the Group’s inventory
provision policy by recalculating, on a sample basis, the provision
for inventories based on the Group’s inventory provision policy;

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the allowance for watches
determined by the management on slow-moving watches with
reference to current market conditions and latest available sales
information; and

o Testing, on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items
by comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end against
their carrying values.
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B 1% SEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with significant degree of
judgment associated with determining the fair value. As at 31st March
2020, the fair value of the investment properties was HK$343,772,000.

As disclosed in notes 2(f) and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, these investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by the independent professional property
valuers. In determining the fair value of investment properties, the
independent professional property valuers adopted market comparison
approach and income capitalisation approach. The valuation is
dependent on certain key inputs that involve the management and
independent professional property valuers’ judgement. The key inputs
used in valuing the investment properties by the independent property
valuers include recent prices achieved by similar properties, current
market conditions, market rental and market yield as adopted in the
valuations.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties
included:

° Evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent professional property valuers;

o Obtaining an understanding from the independent professional
property valuers about the valuation methodology, the
performance of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted, critical judgement on key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

o Assessing whether the properties were valued on a consistent
basis using a consistent methodology by inquiring of management
and independent professional property valuers;

o Assessing the reasonableness of source data used in the
valuations by benchmarking the assumptions to relevant market
information on sales prices and rentals achieved by the similar
properties in the neighbourhood; and

. Obtaining the market research and analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment properties resulted from the
valuation were reasonable and consistent with market trends to
our knowledge.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill

We identified impairment assessment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the carrying amounts and significant
judgements and estimates were involved by management in
determining the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units to
which the goodwill are allocated and to identify whether any impairment
indicators exist.

As disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group completed the acquisition of Reign Abalone Limited
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Reign Abalone Group”) engaged in
gourmet business for a consideration of approximately HK$21,000,000.
As at the date of acquisition, the aggregate fair value of the identifiable
net assets of amounted to approximately HK$1,105,000, with
goodwill of approximately HK$19,895,000 recognised arising from the
acquisition.

Impairment assessment was performed by management annually by
comparing the carrying amount and the recoverable amount of the
asset or the cash generating unit to which the asset relates. During
the year ended 31st March 2020, full impairment of goodwill of
approximately HK$19,895,000 was recognised.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures with respect to the management’s assessment of
goodwill included:

. Assessing the basis which management used to identify separate
groups of cash generating units that contained goodwill, and the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies;

. Assessing the key assumptions used in management’s cash flow
projections for impairment assessment of goodwill, including,
amongst others, expected future cash flows and discount rates;
the reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the models,
e.g. sales growth rate and gross profit margin, by comparing such
key assumptions with the Group’s historical performance and
market data;

o Evaluating the competence, independence, objectivity and
capacity of the Independent professional valuer engaged by

management; and

. Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 1% SEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

We identified impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the carrying amounts and significant judgements and estimates were
involved by management to identify whether any impairment indicators
exist and to determine the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units to which the assets are allocated, including, amongst others,
expected future cash flows and sales growth rate.

As at 31st March 2020, the Group has property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$12,492,000 and
HK$93,827,000 respectively.

Impairment assessment was performed by management annually or
when there are indicators of impairment by comparing the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which the asset relates. During the year ended 31st March
2020, impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of approximately HK$6,028,000 and HK$96,894,000 were
recognised respectively.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures with respect to the management’s impairment
assessment included:

. Obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared by management and
discussing with management on the major assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts for each cash-generating unit and
checking arithmetic accuracy of the forecast calculation;

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the management cash flow
forecasts by comparing the assumptions made to internal and
external data and testing these assumptions by reference to third
party documentation where available;

° Challenging the key assumptions used in each impairment model
and performed sensitivity analysis around key drivers of cash flow
forecasts, including growth rates, operating costs, and expected
life of assets;

o Obtaining evidence to assess adequate historical accuracy in
management’s forecasting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

B 1% SEMERS

I 67 S Bl B3 45 2 B2 1% 8] 60 4R &5 CA Yh B9 & 1

EFAHEMEHNER - HOEANBEFRANMA
ER - TERGAVBRRERMANZEMRS -

BMEEAVERRNELL MRELMER - M
TR % 5 HoAh B B B R R A ©

MRERMESEMBHRRNEL RANEER2HE
HMER  EUBiEh TREMENRSRGAY
BHREAKBMPEEZBRFATHEANBRFEEKNE
BREUFFESRERBORNBR - ERHMER
TIAE-

MRBEMRBBSEMENFEEAERRL - HMFR
BEREE EITARMREENHTERENER -

EBMGOMBERARIENSHE

ESARERBEEBSTMASRONCERYBRE
HRD R EBCARBIDNRERERUAEETMHED
Fal Bk THERRREHFAUBRRNEY
DT ERR A SRR T BB H E A REGRFTER M
AEPEHEE -

ERAGRAVBRERE EERENME BEEEFEAR
BRREN TEERBATREAFSELEARNE
B URERKEEERETER  RFEFEAER

SREEBRNKEFLILE SR ELMEROEATE -

EEMERZEEHRYPRGEE EE BEEEZY
BERMIZF -

Annual Report 2020 |39



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 1% EIMm R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29th June 2020

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

nllT L) E‘ﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31st March 2020 #HZ

—E-TE=A=t-BLFE

2020 2019
—EZEF —T-NEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
M 5 FET FET
Revenue EEWA 5 800,051 934,520
Cost of sales 56 R A (601,270) (650,214)
Gross profit EF 198,781 284,306
Valuation (loss)/gains on investment BEYEZIHE(BE) S
properties (17,400) 781
Other revenue H b Wz 6 15,599 21,590
Other net gains H bz F 58 7 6,234 69
Impairment loss on goodwill B 2R EEE (19,895) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use asset EREEEZRERE (96,894) -
Impairment loss on property, W - WBRBHEZFHEESE
plant and equipment (6,028)
Distribution costs 7 SHAK AN (161,334) (176,548)
Administrative expenses T E R (47,093) (41,166)
Finance costs B 755 B AN 9(a) (14,240) (1,700)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBiAT (B518) & A 9 (142,270) 87,332
Income tax Fig %t 11 (6,452) (16,870)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable EEEEBREAQTFEAZ
to the owners of the Company (&), #5R (148,722) 70,462
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the Company FAN/NETES YN (146,174) 70,462
Non-controlling interest BT A #E 2 (2,548) -
(148,722) 70,462
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (B8 B 13
Basic (HK cents) ERCEM) (19.56) 9.03
Diluted (HK cents) B8 CBN) (19.56) 9.03

The notes on pages 49 to 167 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

profit for the year are set out in Note 12.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

moBaRHbEBNER

For the year ended 31st March 2020 #HE-ZT-—ZTF=A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
— ? — q—: :ﬁ—ﬂi
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE (BB, #R (148,722) 70,462
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AEEHMEE (HB) WEH
for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: SWEMHBEEEEZEE
Change in fair value of equity instruments at fair }?z@jﬂﬁ SFAEMEEKEZ
value through other comprehensive income BRETAZzARER - 684
Items that may be reclassified subsequently FEfE Sl ge iR BT DS
to profit or loss: Em2EE
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBEEZERZR
foreign operations (6,200) (8,061)
Release of fair value reserve on disposal HERAA B AEMEANKEZ
of equity instrument at fair value through fctE T AL A R ERE
other comprehensive income (8,113) -
Total other comprehensive loss AEFEMEEEER
for the year, net of nil tax MBREHIE (14,313) (7,377)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income REEHAEE
for the year (E|) W& (163,035) 63,085
Attributable to: BER:
Owners of the Company PANNESIES TSN (160,487) 63,085
Non-controlling interest #? R 2R (2,548) -
(163,035) 63,085
The notes on pages 49 to 167 form part of these financial statements. FA9E 2 E167H 2 e UL B 1§ 3k 2 BEEEB15 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIFIRIRR

As at 31st March 2020 RZZ=ZTF=HA=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt &E FET FET
Non-current assets FRBDEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NERE 14 12,492 25,539
Prepaid lease payments BN RIA 15 = 15,736
Investment properties wEME 16 343,772 362,776
Deposits and prepayments B R FHIE 22 18,410 29,048
Equity instruments at fair value through BApEst AHEMEEK S 2
other comprehensive income I&#ET B 20 - 9,063
Goodwill R 18 - -
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEGFABR EMEE
profit or loss . 20 14,133 15,097
Deferred tax assets ARAE 0 18 & 31 2,418 2,418
Intangible assets BVEE 17 276 -
Right-of-use assets ERREE 14 93,827 -
485,328 459,677
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 21 195,992 196,517
Prepaid lease payments HEENMRIEA 15 - 467
Trade and other receivables 2 5 K Hith fE AR 51 22 46,942 57,408
Trading securities BHEE 23 382 598
Income tax recoverable Al el Er S 9,016 -
Structured deposit TR 24 - 31,568
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEEYD 25 69,121 69,990
321,453 356,548
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables 5 5 I H M JE < BR 3K 26 98,587 122,415
Contract liabilities SHBIE 27 1,224 1,404
Bank loans RITEE 29 161,403 130,741
Current income tax payable B[V HA & 28 Fi7 15 4,875 4,851
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 77,425 -
343,514 259,411
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) EEFE (22,061) 97,137
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABER 463,267 556,814
Non-current liabilities IE 7 B
Rental deposits received and EH&&?EHSZZ?EE&@
receipt in advance 2,355 3,111
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 31 23,657 21,209
Other liabilities ,Hﬁt =L 32 = 9,397
Lease liabilities HEaf 28 95,846 -
121,858 33,717
Net assets EERE 341,409 523,097
Capital and reserves R AR fii £
Share capital A% 7K 33 149,424 149,424
Reserves 1;%1% 194,060 373,673
Equity attributable to owners of EERAQRTAREAZESR
the Company 343,484 523,097
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,075) -
Total equity RSB 341,409 523,097
Approved and authorlsed for issue by the Board of Dlrectors on 29th June 2020 and signed on |ts behalf by:
TECRFRASTNBEESEBRBAREENE  UHTIESFRERE
Eav Yin Eav Guech Rosanna
B B 18
Director Director
The notes on pages 49 to 167 form part of these financial statements. FA9E ZE167H 2B L I iz 2 BB HH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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The notes on pages 49 to 167 form part of these financial statements.

HEEEEEEARAF

46| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREMERER

As at 31st March 2020 R=ZZT=ZTF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRE AT (E518) T (142,270) 87,332
Adjustments for: I
Valuation losses/(gains) on investment WEYEZHEEE (KR)
properties 16 17,400 (781)
Net realised and unrealised losses BHEEERRKRERZ
on trading securities BB FE 7 216 117
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE  BBERREZ
plant and equipment &g () 7 8 (20)
Profit on disposal of equity investment HERBERE ZRF (6,050) -
Gain on lease modification HEER] 2 W= (1,256) -
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of & 2 Mo, (B[O o) JF 58
inventories, net 21 4,176 (6,818)
Impairment loss on goodwill B ZREEE 18 19,895 -
Reversal of impairment loss on other H b & W 5KI8 2 R E B 1R 5 )
receivables (154) -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 7 RWRFUREEE 7 = 28
Impairment loss on property, plant WD - BHEES KRR 2 R E B4R
and equipment 6,028 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEEREREE 96,894 -
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BRAREFAERZZ
value through profit or loss ERMEEZARBEER 964 -
Bank interest income RITF B WA 6 (1,035) (1,239)
Dividend income & B A 6 (1) ()
Interest expenses BB % 9(a) 14,240 1,700
Depreciation e 14 79,302 3,487
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR ETE R IB 15 - 466
Written back of long outstanding payables B [0 & HA oK S OB 7 - (28)
Exchange differences ERER 991 1,380
89,348 85,623
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL BEESEH
Decrease in inventories 7 & (4,622) (41,487)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 N FE YRR 3K
other receivables A, (3 n) 11,019 (23,496)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 & Hth fE - BR K
other payables Rt )/ 4#8.0n (19,696) 27,870
Decrease in other liabilities Efh & &R - (1,563)
Decrease in rental deposits received and Bl EBEKRZ
receipt in advance HEZSRD (756) (244)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHBERD (87) (336)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS EENREEZES 75,206 46,367
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid EMzHBECEMSH (3,749) -
Hong Kong Income Tax paid ENBEERER (9,016) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EERKEEKZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B FHE 62,441 46,367
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

As at 31st March 2020 RZZ=ZTF=HA=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXE
Payment for purchase of property, SRR BWE - IR RERE
plant and equipment (14,077) (8,092)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets SNAREEREE 9) -
Proceeds from equity instruments at BARBEFARMEEKEZ
fair value through other BT B Fris KB
comprehensive income 7,000 -
Payment for purchase of investment XNBEREM%
properties 16 - (75,857)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME EERREZFAERE
plant and equipment - 20
Deposit paid Y HiRe - (8,000)
Decrease/(increase) in structured deposit HERETERORD () 31,568 (19,106)
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposit with A=A 2 RITHFEK
maturity over three months B (8 n) - 12,462
Dividend income A& BURA 1 1
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries AU I E 2 F) (12,685) -
Bank interest income received 2 YER1T A B Y A 1,035 1,239
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) E4R (EAR)REE£K 2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REeFHE 12,833 (97,333)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Al & E K
Payment for share repurchase X SHIE D [B] BB 33 - (17,468)
Proceeds from new bank loans RITHIEE TS HIB 236,056 186,058
Repayment of bank loans BEETEE (205,170) (69,790)
Interest paid on bank loans RITEEZENHE (4,604) (1,248)
Interest paid on director loans EEERZEMNFE (184) -
Capital element of lease rentals paid E1‘ﬁﬁi"ffﬂ%2§$‘ﬁ1ﬁ (70,645) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEfEER: 2B 3D (9,334) -
Proceeds from new director loans %ﬁ%%fﬁmZFﬁ%?&( 5,000 -
Repayment of loans from a director BREEZENR 30 (5,000) -
Dividend paid B E 12 (19,126) (40,112)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (2BAR), EEXRBEZTH 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B TE (73,007) 57,440
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReRELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N F 5 2,267 6,474
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FURESRESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 69,990 67,163
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXx2HoTE FE
RATE CHANGES, NET (3,136) (3,647)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 69,121 69,990
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRBESEEYERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand BITERRFERS 25 69,121 69,990
The notes on pages 49 to 167 form part of these financial statements. BA9B B F167E 2 WX It B 5 3k 2 2 EE b5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading of watches (retail and wholesale), property
leasing and gourmet business.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM10, Bermuda and
Room 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively. As at 31st March 2020,
the directors of the Company consider that the immediate and
ultimate holding company is Century Hero International Limited
(“Century Hero”), a company which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling party of Century Hero is
Mr. Eav Yin, the director of the Company. Century Hero does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29th June 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property, including interests in leasehold
land and buildings held as investment property where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest; and

- equity investments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 4.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Group incurred
a consolidated loss of approximately HK$148,722,000 (2019:
consolidated profit of HK$70,462,000). As at 31st March
2020, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$22,061,000 (2019: net current assets of HK$97,137,000).

These conditions, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company have given consideration to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. To sustain the Group as a going concern and to
monitor the Group’s liquidity and cash flows, the Group is
implementing the following measures:

- negotiating with banks for renewal and obtaining new
banking facilities;

- the directors of the Company have been taking
various cost control measures to tighten the costs of
operations; and

- the Group has been implementing various strategies to
enhance the Group’s turnover.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast
prepared by management which covers a period of twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. The directors
are of the opinion that the Group will be able to generate
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet
its financial obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of
the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The validity of the going concern assumption on which the
consolidated financial statements are prepared is dependent
on the successful and favourable outcomes of the steps
being taken by the directors as described above.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to classify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(j)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposed group that is
classified as held for sale).

(d)(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Incomes Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

(d)(ii) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)(ii) Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.
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2.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises

Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are

recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit

or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at

FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair

value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(i)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(t).

The investment property is transferred to property, plant
and equipment at fair value when there is change in use
evidenced by commencement of own-occupation.

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
Group could elect on a property-by-property basis to classify
and account for such interest as an investment property.
Any such property interest which had been classified as
an investment property was accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 2(i)), and the same
accounting policies were applied to that interest as were
applied to other investment properties leased under finance
leases. Lease payments were accounted for as described in
note 2(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. XESHBE(8)
(9) Property, plant and equipment (g) 0% - RBRR

2

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2())):

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest
(see note 2(i));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 2(i)).

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that property at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(h)

U]

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

- trademarks 10 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessee

A

Policy applicable from 1st April 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see notes 2(g) and 2(j)), except for the following
types of right-of-use asset:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Leased assets (Continued)

(i

As a lessee (Continued)

(A

Policy applicable from 1st April 2019 (Continued)

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value
in accordance with note 2(f); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the leasehold interest are
carried at cost in accordance with note 2(g).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
and presents lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1st April 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group were classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property was classified
as investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, was accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 2(f)); and
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  As a lessee (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1st April 2019
(Continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which could not be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, was accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building
was also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease was the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets were recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, were recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation was provided
at rates which wrote off the cost or valuation of
the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it was likely the Group would obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in note 2(g). Impairment losses were
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(j). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments were charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were incurred.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they were
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(1)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, structured
deposits and trade and other receivables)

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at FVPL and equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are not
subject to the ECL assessment.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 180 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(t)
(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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2.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is' made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the amount carried in “trade and other
payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will
default has increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note
2(j)(i) apply.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

- intangible assets;

a goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(/) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
(k) Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
conversing business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in
the production process or in the rendering of services.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(t)). A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note

2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 2(t)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. It revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

2()(@)-

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing cost (see note 2(v)).
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(j)(ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECLs) in accordance with the policy set out in note

2())(@)-

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material,
stated at their present values.

these amounts are

(i)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts

(i

(i)

(ifi)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions
for onerous contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of continuing with the
contract.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with note 2(s)(i). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with note 2(s)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months,
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income

revenue is measured at the

is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of watches

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between
all the goods and services promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 2(i)

D)

Gourmet income

Revenue from sale of food products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the goods has
been transferred when the products are accepted by
the customers. Revenue from restaurant operation is
recognised at the point in time when catering services
have been provided to customers.

Service income
Service income is recognised at the point in time

when the services are fully rendered and accepted by
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(v) Borrowing costs
(w) Related parties
(@)

(i)

(iii)

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company, the Group’s most senior executive
management, for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

86| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

2. FESFECR ()

(w) BEEAL (&)

()

(b) MWFAE TIEMES  —EEREN
SEAR: (B)

(viiy —FEIER  AAEEEFAKER
AIEA—EELE RHETAEE
UAREBEZRBAREEEEAR
B 75

FALZERERMARSTUYERA+E
PSP RS Tl eI 2 PRl
REAE -

NEWRE

REDBEMBERRM2BZ BV AERE R
B DRERSREERTARESEERR
WwED SR HEERAEMERRETARA
BExg(ARERSEEEAR) ZHBER
i #E5E ©

SIS 2N F - BRIFD A A EBUNKLE
FRLEERMRBME £ETFME -
EPBAREN - AEDEERSIRHERE
MEREERFWEE T EMAL - BRIE
BEERLLEDMIGETEE (EHRIFEKR
MEE DA - MR G LA DIRE - B
FETARE -

0

SHe

FE

i

EEEHARAE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current
year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except for HKFRS 16 “Leases”, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease”, HK(SIC) 15 “Operating Leases - Incentives”,
and HK(SIC) 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
involving the Legal Form of a Lease”. It introduces a single
accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases,
except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1st April 2019.
The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach
and has therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at
1st April 2019. Comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition options applied are set out
below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the
concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis
of whether a customer controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be determined by a defined
amount of use. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that were entered into or changed on
or after 1st April 2019. For contracts entered into before
1st April 2019, the Group has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.

Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed as
leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for as
leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed
as non-lease service arrangements continue to be accounted
for as executory contracts.

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to classify
leases as either operating leases or finance leases, as
was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group
is required to capitalise all leases when it is the lessee,
including leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, other than those short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets which are exempt. For an
explanation of how the Group applies lessee accounting, see
note 2(i)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1st April 2019), the
Group determined the length of the remaining lease terms
and measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously
classified as operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the relevant
incremental borrowing rates at 1st April 2019.

The incremental borrowing rates used for determination of

the present value of the remaining lease payments were
4.26% to 5.46%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the
following recognition exemption and practical expedients at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

i. the Group elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for which the
remaining lease term ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the
lease term ends on or before 31st March 2020;

ii. ~ when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics (such as leases with a similiar
remaining lease term for a similiar class of underlying
asset in a economic environment); and

iii. when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the
previous assessment for onerous contract provisions as
at 31st March 2019 as an alternative to performing an
impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM
W FSERRBAE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 42 as at 31st March 2019
to the opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at
1st April 2019.

ENTS

3. MEMRSIEBN RS EREST R (8)

BB RRSEAFE163EAE (F)
b. RIBASHERRBIESZ (/)
T%ﬁmﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂiy h&E=A

—t—HENEREHEEARZER T NFD
B—BRRNEE GRS IHEK -

1st April 2019

—NF
mA—HA
HK$’000
FET
Operating lease commitments at —NE=ZA=+—"BZ2EEHEKIE
31st March 2019 256,986
Less: commitments relating to leases exempt R BN ER b HEHIE
from capitalisation:
- Short-term lease and other leases - B ITHBER =T _TF=A=FT—H%
with remaining lease term ending ZHERNEHEEREMEE
on or before 31st March 2020 (5,199)
Less: total future interest expenses R - RRFIE RS B % (17,616)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FIAMENRZEE  MRARZZ—NF
discounted using the incremental borrowing MA—HZEEEEMERMRR
rate and total lease liabilities HRZEEABEREENE
recognised at 1st April 2019 234,171

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the statement of financial position at 31st March 2019. There
is no impact on the opening balance of equity.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs FERAM:IS B IERSENRZIEZTR (8)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) SBUKERESEAE163RTAE (8)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b. HRIBASHERRIBIESZE (E)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1st April RZE-NWFHA-—AFERABEENERE
2019 comprises the following: BIEATEE
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
Note HK$’000
Kt FET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases & & B B %5 3R 5 YE I B 1 65 B i
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 RELLHEESRAZERAELE 234,171
Add: Reclassification of prepaid lease payments /i : HEENRIBEZ EFHH I 16,203
Add: Reclassification of land and buildings m: Lt REF2EHHLE 16,353
Less: Accrued lease liabilities relating to rent free 135 - —=— L FEMA — B EeH
period at 1st April 2019 HEBzESFHAESRE (i) (14,387)
252,340
i.  Rent free period i  FHE
These relate to accrued lease liabilities for leases of HEEHAARECARH 2 HEYMED
properties in which the lessors provided rent-free EiHEAEEHE HEEREER
period. The carrying amount of the lease incentive ZE-NFUNA-—BZEREEERAE
liabilities as at 1st April 2019 was adjusted to right-of- ARG HELSE -
use assets at transition.
TR EF AW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)

P& A ¥R 5T & 58 B B 4R &5 HE RIRZ 2 5T 7k (4])

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) SBNRRSEAFE16EAE (8)

RBASHEERBEZE ()

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b.

TERBMERAT BT HWEERE165FE A
EEEAMBRARITE

The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position:

Capitalisation

Carrying of operating Carrying
amount at 31st lease amount at
March 2019 contracts Reclassification 1st April 2019
RZB-NF R-ZB-h%
ZR=t-Bz BEREE mA-A2
REE HEEH ENOE REE
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FET

Line items in the consolidated statement T RAFEBHBRE £ H F165 ¥

of financial position impacted by the 224G ABERAKER :
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 219,784 32,556 252,340
Property, plant and equipment Mz BB RRE 25,539 - (16,353) 9,186
Prepaid lease payments MERMFE 15,736 E (15,736) -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 459,677 219,784 467 679,928
Prepaid lease payments METREFUE 467 - (467) -
Total current assets RBEEAE 356,548 - (467) 356,081
Lease liabilities HEBE - 70,447 - 70,477
Trade and other payables BHREMEMER 122,415 (4,990) - 117,425
Current liabilities nBaE 259,411 65,457 - 324,868
Net current assets RBEERE 97,137 (65,457) (467) 31,213
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 556,814 154,327 - 711,141
Lease liabilities HEBE - 163,724 - 163,724
Other liabilities Hing & 9,397 (9,397) - -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAE 33,717 154,327 - 188,044
Net assets EEFE 523,097 - - 523,097
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

C.

Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash
flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1st April 2019, the Group as a lessee
is required to recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
This results in a negative impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, as compared to the
results if HKAS 17 had been applied during the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group as
a lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest element.
These elements are classified as financing cash outflows,
similar to how leases previously classified as finance leases
under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for operating leases under HKAS
17. Although total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant change in
presentation of cash flows within the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

The following tables give an indication of the estimated
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s financial
result, segment results and cash flows for the year ended
31st March 2020, by adjusting the amounts reported under
HKFRS 16 in these consolidated financial statements to
compute estimates of the hypothetical amounts that would
have been recognised under HKAS 17 if this superseded
standard had continued to apply in 2020 instead of HKFRS
16, and by comparing these hypothetical amounts for 2020
with the actual 2019 corresponding amounts which were
prepared under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

c. Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash
flows of the Group (Continued)

P& A ¥R 5T & 58 B B 4R &5 #E R RZ 2 5T 7k (4])

SBWBRSEUNE16RAE (&)

c. HKEEAMKES  PPEERAENEL
FE(E

2020 2019
—E-8% ZE-NE
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to
Add back: operating  Hypothetical Compared
Amounts HKFRS 16 leases as if ~ amounts for to amounts
reported  depreciation under 2020 as if reported for
under HKFRS  and interest HKAS 17 under 2019 under
16 expense (note 1) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
% 58
LeEfgy B-Z-hF
it S ME:EE fEHeEEn -S-3E2 Xk
EEMBRE HERSEN REFESH RRSEMD LREPRE
BRE168  S16RER  EAETR)  BEFBER  AEeHEd
EfesE YK (W&E1) ERETR) E17%)
A) B) (©)  (D=A+B-C)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FiEx &% FET
Financial result for year ended SRMBRUHHREEE16R
31st March 2020 impacted by YEvHZ_3-%%5=§
the adoption of HKFRS 16: ST-HLEFEZMBER:
Finance costs Lt s (14,240) 9,334 (79,979) (84,885) 1,700
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBiA () /87 (142,270) 79,053 (79,979) (143,196) 87,332
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(BB) /&7 (148,722) 79,053 (79,979) (149,648) 70,462
Reportable segment (loss)/profit SRGBRUBHREEE16R
for year ended 31st March YEVBE-ET-BEZR
2020 impacted by the adoption of ST-HLEEEZTERI S
HKFRS 16: (8)/%5H:
Sales of watches EENE (87,693) 79,053 (79,979) (88,619) 91,357
Total mE (106,322) 79,053 (79,979) (107,248) 94,168
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. MEMRSIEBN RS EREST R (8)

SBWBRSEUNE16RBAE (&)

c. Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash c. HMhEAUNRES -  AUELERBEREZ
flows of the Group (Continued) TE(E)
2020 2019
Sl 13 ZE-NE
Estimated
amounts Hypothetical
related to amounts Compared
operating for the year to amounts
Amounts leases as ended 31st reported
reported if under March 2020 as for 2019
under HKAS 17 if under under
HKFRS 16 (note 1&2) HKAS 17 HKAS 17
BZE
ZEZEf
ARREREY ZAZt-A
RE EHEZ 64 LEEZ B-T-NF
BERBRE REFEET BREEBD  RHEEHR
EBIE168 ERETH) REFEET (REEBEH
EH2eR (H1R2) EAF1TH) ERZ17%)
) B) (C=A+B)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FEn FET FiET
Line items in the consolidated statement FRNB AN KR EEAE16
of cash flows for year ended 31st March 2020 ¥ EvHE_S-F&=
impacted by the adoption of A=+-HLEEZGEE
HKFRS 16: eRBERZER
Cash generated from operations EAREELRE 75,206 (79,979) 4,773) 46,367
Net cash (used in)/generated from (BAR)/BEREEEE2
operating activities BeFE 62,441 (79,979) (17,538) 46,367
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERBEEZERS D (70,645) 70,645 - -
Interest element of lease rentals paid BRAETIE 55 (9,334) 9,334 - -
Net cash (used in)/generated from (BRR)/EERBERH
financing activities RERE (73,007) 79,979 6,972 57,440
Note 1: The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” is a1 . [ARCEREZiteEl B -2
an estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in 2020 THEHBEEEE B RESRM
that relate to leases which would have been classified WEBSEBFEITRN =S =F
as operating leases, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2020. MBEA  MZSHES I BEREEH
This estimate assumes that there were no difference oA HESHBESRECHEYT
between rentals and cash flows and that all of the new mERE BMBEBEMENS1ITRR
leases entered into in 2020 would have been classified Z_TFENEER  AIRZZT=TFi]
as operating leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still A SHENESEAKEEE -
applied in 2020. Any potential net tax effect is ignored. ERDEERBE R EH BT -
Note 2: In this impact table these cash outflows are reclassified Wike: ZyfExhrBEehRraRiETmsE
from financing to operating in order to compute RIEE  UEHAEEENGEEEHZH
hypothetical amounts of net cash generated from operating SFHENCHARRE TS Z2ESFEY
activities and net cash used in financing activities as if RS MBS G EREITHRD
HKAS 17 still applied. @A e
% 4 A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

d.

Leasehold investment property

Under HKFRS 16, the Group is required to account for
all leasehold properties as investment properties when
these properties are held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation (“leasehold investment properties”).
The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Group
previously elected to apply HKAS 40 “Investment Property”,
to account for all of its leasehold properties that were
held for investment purposes as at 31st March 2020.
Consequentially, these leasehold investment properties
continue to be carried at fair value.

Lessor accounting

In addition to leasing out the investment property referred
to in paragraph (d) above, the Group does not lease out any
other assets as the lessor of operating leases.

Under HKFRS 16, when the Group acts as an intermediate
lessor in a sublease arrangement, the Group is required to
classify the sublease as a finance lease or an operating lease
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, instead of by reference to the underlying asset. The
adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements in this regard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(a) Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuations performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. In determining the fair values, the valuers have
based on a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at
31st March 2020, the fair value of the investment properties
was HK$343,772,000 (2019: HK$362,776,000).

R §5 ER R B 5F

FA &2 2 51 FIBR B2 14 5t

RERBM 2P AN R B & 5T R - ARAE
EAHMEBEINEMREERANEERAERE

BEEHHE - SRR - ZEGHFRERRR
B%Fﬁgmﬁ AREFAE REMRER BN E

=EH - ERIEEHRZEMT

ZKQ}Eﬂ‘*%*ﬁ*$ﬁn¢EZ—TfEufli$HEﬁEj*“ i st &
FHEFT IR RZBERT At IR - RIG R
Rl B MR R hﬁ@ R 2 B H N R ok
iR - IARET e T HM ORISR ARER -

AT RRMEBRPIEHBBAARARNEERRRE
At PEEEZRNEMEERR  LAEHEER
RMAEERENTEMRFEREERBEN
FREE(FLERFE -

(a) BREMERGE

REVERBBYIAERELGHEME
THEERAAEYR BERAAER
HEMAFRETHRGEANGEELE
EESE  AMRBEERERN  AQAE
ECETEHAS T ENHEEMARK
BERBRIRES TN - 2SS WA MM E B
m&“$$§&§%¥mﬁﬁﬁ I 78 4

GABRRTBREARSBEELEREEE -
R-TE-_ZTF=A=+—RH KREYW%E>
N F 1B AF343,772,0008 78 (Z T — AL 4 -
362,776,000/ 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The management of the Group carries out regular
review on the inventory write-down policy and estimates
the net realisable value of the watches based primarily on
condition of the inventories, current market conditions,
historical and latest sales information and sales plan as well
as the aging of inventories to identify slow-moving items.
The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
the reporting period and inventories are written down to
estimated net realisable value. The identification of write-
down requires the use of estimates. When the expectation
of the net realisable value is less than the original estimate,
further write-down may arise. As at 31st March 2020, the
carrying amount of the inventories (net of write-down) was
HK$195,992,000 (2019: HK$196,517,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables which are individually insignificant.
The provision rates are based on groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 36.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(d)

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision in accordance
with the prevailing tax rules and regulations, taking into
account any special approvals obtained from relevant tax
authorities and any preferential tax treatment to which it is
entitled in each location or jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate current tax
provision based on the prevailing tax rules and regulations
and its current best estimates and assumptions. In the event
that future tax rules and regulations or related circumstances
change, adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial position.
As at 31st March 2020, the carrying amount of current
income tax payable is HK$4,875,000 (2019: HK$4,851,000).

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the directors
consider it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax expenses or other
comprehensive income in the periods in which such estimate
is changed. As at 31st March 2020, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities amounted
to HK$2,418,000 and HK$23,657,000 respectively (2019:
HK$2,418,000 and HK$21,209,000).

R §5 ER R B 5F

4. AR SsHYIENR: &5t (88)

(d)

PR {5 5 1% 3% RE 5t I8

AEBFEEASHBEIRIE T ERZH
TEARGI SRR - X B AR SRR
B2 URAKEEE S HES
By zERAEERBREXEHE -RAE
EBEED AR RFAEERRZT
BOREN THEE - ARBREARBEESSE
HiAERBAREX N ZBIRBAER R E
B WEFHZRARBERE MR T
ZHRBEEAR  RERAEZREHRHE - &
SHMERMEERBHREETE -

AEBEREERTERZ BB R RBFRZ
ERT BURBEZHAFLRREE  H
IR Z B ERT i MR - AR5
PINRBNNBARZEZERT R ZH
BRAEF2ELEERE ey ey
AEBZEERMBNRN -R-F_FF=
A=t+—H BRENAERZETNSER
4,875,000/ 7T (= & — /L : 4,851,000/
JT) °

HEES=RBO AT K R A4
ISR N A B EE R IEEE S
AT BEEFESHEERBONE TERZ
ENTHIEEETURR - WEMSEEFRTE
B EE  ZEEBTEERMAE M
BRZELHBEEERRBASISHEME
Bl RZZE_EF=-A=+—H0 BT
MELZENEEHBAGEZEMES A
2,418,0005# 7T }223,657,000/8 7T (— T — 11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(e)

(f

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or
fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit (or a group
of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows, a material impairment loss/further impairment
loss may arise. As at 31st March 2020, the carrying amount
of goodwill is HK$Nil (2019: HK$Nil) (net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$19,895,000 (2019: HK$Nil)). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In determining
the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option, including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed
when there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any increase
or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future
years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are trading of watches (retail
and wholesale) property leasing and gourmet business.

Revenue represents (i) the gross proceeds received and receivable
derived from the sale of watches, less the value added tax, other
sales taxes and trade discounts, (ii) rental income from property
leasing and (iii) gourmet income.

() Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service lines is as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

EXIWA

AEEZIZEXBRBERES (TERBEBUL
MEHERFERER -

BEWABN) K B EERIHE ERA R EYR -
BIEER - RMHENRE ST HRAEHEA
KRB MEEENHES WA Ri)ERYA -
i) EERBASD

BRIZEMIMBRINDZKEEFLPENZ
BERALT

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers BB REERE155REE A
within the scope of HKFRS 15 KEEFAEHZ RS
— Sales of watches — EBRIHE 784,897 925,442
— Service income — RBHBA - 285
— Gourmet income — ERIA 5,048 -
Revenue from other sources R B H i AOR 2 W e
- Rental income from investment properties — RkBEREMELHAESWA 10,106 8,793
800,051 934,520

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets

is disclosed in note 8.

6. OTHER REVENUE

6. HfthUxzs

RERRARERRLRHISE D REETS
& BB D AT PO MY L8R ER o

2020 2019
—E-EE —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Interest income on financial assets measured AU AT E v e B E
at amortised cost B U A 1,035 1,239
Dividend income R% B A 1 1
Promotion income HE WA - 3,190
Advertising income BEERA 3,143 4,953
Customer services income and others R RIS A R EHA 11,420 12,207
15,599 21,590
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

7. OTHER NET GAINS 7. Hithlgz=i$aa
2020 2019
—E-ZHF —ZE-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&ET
Net realised and unrealised loss on
trading securities 5558 (216) (117)
Profit on disposal of equity i HERERE 2R T 6,050 -
Impairment loss on trade B 5RO EEE - (28)
Reversal of impairme eceivables EfEURIBERENRIBZ
and prepayments FEEERD 154 -
Fair value loss o s at fair value BARBEF ARG SREEL
through prof l 518 [ (964) -
(Loss)/gain o property, plant and BN ERE
equipme j I 25 (8) 20
Written b tstanding payables HA SR < IR = 28
Gain o ation - g 1,256 -

Others 166

69
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocations and performance assessments. The Group has
presented two reportable segments: (i) sale of watches (retail and
wholesale) and (ii) properties leasing. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in notes to
the financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the
profit earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of
central administration costs and corporate costs which cannot be
meaningfully allocated to individual segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in @ manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and other corporate
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

8.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. HNEPHRE (48)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets UTAAEEKE Sz %W 45 BE
and liabilities by operating segment: KBEZ:
2020
ZBCEE
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
HEHE HENE ABET L) @it
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FET FET
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition R < B
Point in time REFEE 786,516 - 786,516 - 786,516
Over time H—BEER - 8487 8,487 5,048 13,535
External revenue (Note) MR (W) 786,516 8,487 795,003 5,048 800,051
Operating profit/(l0ss) mesEr/ (58) 27,129 (1,225) 25,904 (20,986) 4,918
Valuation loss on investment properties REmE (bEBE - (17,400) (17,400) - (17,400)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREER - = = (19,895) (19,895)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets RREAE ZREEE (96,894) = (96,894) = (96,894)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment n%  BERRELRERSE (6,028) - (6,028) - (6,028)
Interest income FEYN 1,035 - 1,035 - 1,035
Other net gains/(losses) ke (B8) 58 1,221 (2 1,225 5,009 6,234
Finance costs B AR (14,162) - (14,162) (78) (14,240)
Segment results AELE (87,693) (18,627) (106,320) (35,950) (142,270)
Income tax expense FEHER (6,452)
Loss for the year rEEER (148,722)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment LEN=  BERREZES ) - @) - )
Write-down of inventories MRS (4,176) - (4,176) - (4,176)
Reversal of impairment loss of other receivable REEfEREZREER 154 154 154
Net realised and unrealised loss on trading securities BHEEERNAERY
ERFH - = = (219) (215)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (76,659) (762) (77,421) (1,881) (79,302)
Income tax expense FiEHER (4,004) - (4,004) - (4,004)
Deferred tax BEHE (2,448) = (2,448) = (2,448)
Segment assets PHEE 428,738 327,136 755,874 34,356 790,230
Financial assets at fair value through BARBHABRZEREE
profit or loss 14,133
Deferred tax assets BREHEAE 2,418
Total assets WEE 806,781
Additions to non-current segment assets AREBEERY
during the reporting period DHEEZEM 247,631 209 247,840 26,489 274,329
Segment liabilities PHEE 415111 8,822 423,933 12,907 436,840
Current income tax payable EDERRE piE i 4,875
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 23,657
Total liabilities BafE 465,372

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March

2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n P X 6
A7 ¥5 ER R Bfit 51
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. HNIEIRE (48)
2019
ZE-nE
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
BRHE BENE 7z KA @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEx T FET FET
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition RRER N R A T
Point in time WEE RIS 925,442 - 925,442 - 925,442
Over time R—BERER - 8,793 8,793 285 9,078
External revenue (Note) HoME () 925,442 8,793 934,235 285 934,520
Operating profit/(loss) meEn/ (BR) 91,316 2,030 93,346 (6,403) 86,943
Valuation gains on investment &ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁu&%ﬁ
properties - 781 781 - 781
Interest income FEHA 1,239 - 1,239 - 1,239
Other net gains/(losses) Hiplek/(BR)FE 502 - 502 (433) 69
Finance costs B (1,700) - (1,700) - (1,700)
Segment results DEEE 91,357 2,811 94,168 (6,836) 87,332
Income tax expense FEREA (16,870)
Profit for the year REE R 70,462
Reversal of write-down of inventories ROMEEE 6,818 - 6,818 - 6,818
Write back of long outstanding payables RERBANTE 28 = 28 - 28
Impairment loss of trade receivables BIRNETAEER (28) - (28) - (28)
Net realised and unrealised loss EH
on trading securities - - - (118) (118)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (3,087) (648) (3,735) 219) (3,954)
Deferred tax EiTRE (16,870) - (16,870) - (16,870)
Segment assets PHEE 406,821 366,407 773,228 16,419 789,647
Financial assets at fair value through BAREIHALM
other comprehensive income PEREZEREE 9,063
Financial assets at fair value RN EHABERL
through profit or loss PREE 15,007
Deferred tax assets BEEREERE 2418
Total assets BEE 816,225
Additions to non-current segment KREBFERY
assets during the reporting period NHEEZEM 8,952 76,990 85,942 - 85,942
Segment liabilities PHEE 254,746 8,772 263,518 3,550 267,068
Current income tax payable MG 4,851
Deferred tax liabilities ELMQEL 21,209
Total liabilities BEE 293,128
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Hat REBZE-E—HAhE=A=+—HIEEHHIE

2019.

DEBEHEE -
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments,
investment properties, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
and deposits and prepayments. The geographical location of
customers is referred to the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical locations of
non-current assets are based on the physical location of the
assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

AR (4])
KEmEEN

T AOEREBREINDERP 2 M R(i)AEB 2
P MR kEE HEBEMRE REVE -
FREEE BEFEERESERBNRBEZLES
WEDI - BEEEHELEAREREUEY
Bk B o ERBEEZCEERLENREE
L ERMEEE & o

Revenues from

external customers

Non-current assets

RENBEF ZWE FREBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
b 33 —TNF —BC-EE ZT-NE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
The People’s Republic hEAREME

of China, excluding Hong Kong & BRI 340,541 329,181 107,864 63,000
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (REM) 458,560 604,390 278,516 279,142
Switzerland Wt 950 949 16,409 14,898
United Kingdom W - - 65,988 76,060
800,051 934,520 468,777 433,100

Information about major customers FARFrEF&EHR

For the year ended 31st March 2020, revenue of approximately
HK$109,818,000 (2019: HK$91,329,000) was derived from a
single external customer who contributed more than 10% of total
revenue of the Group. This revenue was attributable to the sales of
watches segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 0. WRFEE (BE)
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BERT(EB) %M Eds, GEA) L T&IE -
(a) Finance costs (a) BFFERX7R
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEEF S 4,882 1,700
Interest on lease liabilities HE&EFE 9,334 -
Interest on loans from a director EFERAE 24 -
Total interest expenses on financial WIER A R Bt ABEA SR
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENHE L HARE
profit or loss 14,240 1,700
(b) Staff costs (b) BIpK
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits (including e LENHEMEF
directors’ fee and emoluments) (BREE=we ) 57,184 56,799
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RN RIS K 2,939 3,867
60,123 60,666
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 9. BRTia(F518) BH (@)

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BERT(EB) %M Eds, GEA) L T&IE -

(Continued) €-))
(c) Other items (c) HfthiaBg
2020 2019
—E-EF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment TE W EEWAE S MR
properties less direct outgoings of B # % 1H566,000/%E T
HK$566,000 (2019: HK$414,000) — = JLE : 414,000 7T) (9,540) 8,379)
Net exchange (gain)/loss &5 (es) /B8 F 58 (452) 1,803
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z ELAT B &
- Audit services —ZE R 1,270 1,330
- Other services — H th Bz 755 380 344
Depreciation change heEER
— Owned property, plant and equipment  — & B 1) % - #28 % R4 (M 3Ea)
(note (i) 7,684 3,487
- right-of-use assets (note (i) —fF A EE (MEEI) 71,618 -
79,302 3,487
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 8 & 78 |~ 2K 18 % 4% = 466
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of MWORL, (B @ #UR) 17 &% 58
inventories, net 4,176 (6,818)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S RERKERERZ REERE - 28
Impairment loss on goodwill BB ZREEE 19,895 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ~ {f A & &= Z REE B 96,894 -
Impairment loss on property, plant M - HeESREEZREEE
and equipment 6,028 -
Reversal of impairment loss on other Hth E YTBR R &
receivables and prepayments T IR E RO (154) -
Write back of long outstanding payables 1 [6] & B 7k {5 5418 - (28)
Total minimum lease payments for lease sERTIRIBEZE @1 R FE 175 548
previously classified as operating lease ~ARKEHEZHE KEHE
under HKAS 17 NEEE
- Minimum rentals — &EHEE - 84,138
- Contingent rentals — Al E - 793
- 84,931
Variable lease payments not included REtE2EHREABR R Rz
in the measurement of lease liabilities A S E R 1,222 -
Cost of inventories recognised BRBAL2HEZFERA
as expenses 601,270 650,214

Note (i): Biat() -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified FEBEEREETEHEZBERERT BV R
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st ELEABIERFER_ZT-NFHA—-BNH
April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which e ARELENRIBET BT ERE175R
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After DERKEHENTHSHBNERAREE - N
Z-NFHA-BUSBRACBREEER K&
B (ERAEAN) ARIAEMAEEENE  MIkEL
AHBR N AREREIREERHER T E
EMTESRX - RIBEZFE  LRERWEST -
RIS -

initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1st April 2019, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use
assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See note 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEMERESHEAL
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) =EM2
The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31st REEZ_E—NWFRER_ZE_TF=/[=+—
March 2020 and 2019 are set out below: AEFEBNESZHESEIOT :
2020
—E-EF
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances - to retirement
Directors’ Basic Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
EER BHRER
20k Exge  FRERL HitER  SEEEHE @it

HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEAT FET FET FET FAT FAT

Executive Directors BTES
Eav Yin B 238 4,822 894 1,440 - 7,394
Eav Guech Rosanna Bk - 840 201 - - 1,04
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan o1 5] 238 3,502 839 - 16 4,595
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BEEE(R=2-1%E
(resigned on 7th August 2019) NALHEF) - = - - - -
476 9,164 1,934 1,440 16 13,030
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Lai Si Ming bt 238 - - - - 238
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline B ) 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent FTER 238 - - - - 238
714 - - - - 714
1,190 9,164 1,934 1,440 16 13,744
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

10. ESHERRSHEAL ()

() S|BHE (8

2019
ZE-nE
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances  to retirement
Directors’ Basic  Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
ZHR RINER
TR 21Ee  TEERA EER  GhEEZEK @t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiEx FET FET FET FEx
Executive Directors HTEE
Eav Yin BC 238 4,383 372 1,053 - 6,046
Eav Guech Rosanna e - 840 2 - - 842
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan o137 113 1,121 65 - 1 1,300
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BHEE - - - - - -
351 6,344 439 1,053 1 8,188
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - - 238
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline IR 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TR 238 - - - - 238
714 - - - - 714
1,065 6,344 439 1,053 1 8,902
Notes: Bt -

(U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st
March 2020 and 2019.

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March
2020 and 2019.

As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, the directors held share
options under the Company’s share option scheme. The details
of the share options are disclosed under the paragraph “share
option scheme” in the report of the directors and Note 34(a).

The Company has not appointed Chief Executive, and the role
and function of the Chief Executive has been performed by the
executive directors.
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10. DIRECTORS’

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Individuals with highest emoluments

R §5 ER R B 5F

EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. ESHERESHE2AL (8)

(i) REMEAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two AfuGEsHALH BMEZ(ZZE—-IF: —
(2019: one) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed i) BE 2B &AM FE106) 5 5 o« H =1
in Note 10(j). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of (ZZ—NEmfu) At zMe@zEenT :

the other three (2019: four) individuals is as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EfF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Basic salaries, allowances and other ERF ¢ EZREMEF
emoluments 3,850 2,805
Performance related incentive payments RIBEE A 739 3,559
Employer’s contribution to retirement RIRAER 5t EIE EAER
benefit scheme 135 168
4,724 6,532
The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: four) BT (ZE—NF W) &Zaile AL

individuals with the highest emoluments are within the NETHEE :

following bands:

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019

—z-%F e s

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001,8 7t — 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T = 2
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000/% 7T = -
3 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

11.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS

REeRBRREANZPRSH

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current tax BNERRE 1R
PRC Corporate Income Tax hEI TSR
- Charge for the year — REEMER 4,004 -
Deferred tax IRAER I
Origination and reversal of temporary BRMEECEARED
differences 2,448 16,870
Income tax expense e R 6,452 16,870

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%). No Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been provided for in the financial statements for the years
ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 either because the Hong Kong
subsidiaries have accumulated tax losses brought forward which
exceeded the estimated assessable profits or the Hong Kong
subsidiaries sustained losses for taxation purpose.

Taxation for the PRC subsidiaries is provided at the rate of 25%
(2019: 25%). No PRC income tax has been provided for in the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 either
because the PRC subsidiaries have accumulated tax losses
brought forward which exceeded the estimated assessable profits
or the PRC subsidiaries sustained losses for taxation purpose.

The subsidiary in Switzerland is subject to Switzerland Profits Tax
at the rate of 16% (2019: 16%). No Switzerland Profits Tax has
been provided for the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Switzerland.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 1. (O IEBEENZPhiSTHH (8)
OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting (loss)/profit MERYEE (EE) SIRERNREAE 2
at applicable tax rates: R -
2020 2019
—E-EE —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
(Loss)/profit before taxation B ELAT (E18) /% A (142,270) 87,332
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RITEBE R AR (E518) 55
calculated at the tax rates applicable to KO A B = AT E R BR B AT s Al 2
(losses)/profit in the countries concerned HEMIE (22,130) 15,050
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERMIE E TR S H 2R E 26,613 3,009
Tax effect of non-taxable items EHRFEETERGCIEE ZRBEE (1,458) (1,920)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses EAREFERZRMEERZRIETE (3,178) (4,404)
Tax effect of previously unrecognised and BERBERALAESFEAZHIEER
unused tax losses and deductible temporary A &fﬁﬁﬁémﬁipkﬁlﬁ;ﬁézﬁﬁﬂ
differences now recognised as deferred tax BMERZER B E
assets (252) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR ZREBEBZRETE 4,647 1,265
Tax effect of temporary AR ERER
difference not recognised 2 IS8 (490) 1,770
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of FEIM B A RlZ R P ik Al 2 TE
PRC subsidiaries 2,700 2,100
Actual tax expense ERHIIEZ 6,452 16,870
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
(a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable (a) FARGZENMKRASSEARS
to the year
2020 2019
—EoBE —NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Final dividend proposed after the end of RIS HRBEZRIKE 2K E
the reporting period of HK$NIil & EFRTHE T
(2019: HK$0.0256) per share (ZZ— 1% : 0.0256/& 7T) - 19,126
- 19,126
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
12. DIVIDENDS (Continued) 12. IR2 (48)
(a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable (a) FAMEGEZEMRASISEARS (8)

to the year (Continued)

No interim dividend was paid for the years ended 31st March HE-_Z—NGFR-_ZE-_ZTF=-A=+—H
2020 and 2019. ﬁi};‘ﬂzﬁﬁ/ﬁé’é@,ﬁﬁ
(b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable (b) BB FEREES (iR ERIERER)
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during ZEMKASIFEARS
the year
2020 2019
—EZEF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Final dividend in respect of the previous BRABEVBRFELERFR
financial year, approved and paid during the  #t ) & 52 (v 7 REI R B & P&
year of HK$0.0256 (2019: HK$0.0256) per 0.02568 7T (=T — 4 :
share 0.0256/%5 7T ) 19,126 20,056

Special dividend in respect of the previous BRBTHRFELERFERN
financial year, approved and paid during the — #t & & 3 (< 2 45 B I% 5 & &
year of HK$Nil (2019: HK$0.0256) per share TAET(ZZE—NF :

0.02567& 70) - 20,056
19,126 40,112
For the year ended 31st March 2019, the final dividend per BHE-_ZT—NF=-A=T—HILFE FH
share in respect of the previous financial year, approved and BAVRFEVERFAMERI N 2B
paid during the year has been adjusted for the effect of share KRB EMEEZE_TE—NAF=A=+—H
consolidation which occurred during the year ended 31st IFFEETRDEH ZZEELAE -
March 2019.
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13.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended
31st March 2020 is based on loss attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$146,174,000 and the weighted average
number of 747,123,000 ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31st March 2019 is based on profit attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$70,462,000 and the weighted
average number of 780,575,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

For the year ended 31st March 2019, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares has been adjusted for the effect
of share consolidation which occurred during the year ended
31st March 2019.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is equal to the basic (loss)/
earnings per share for the years ended 31st March 2020 and
2019.

The Company’s share options have no dilutive effect for
the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 because the
exercise price of the Company’s share options was higher
than the average market price of the Company’s shares for
both years.

R §5 ER R B 5F

13. 8 (&B1E) Bl

(a)

(b)

SREK(E) B

REE-_T-_ZTF-_A=+—HBLFEFK
EAEBEDRERBRAQREFEABLE
$8146,174,0008 7T + A KRR F R EFHITH M
119 @A 747,123,0000 51 & -

REEZZE-NFZA=Z+—BLFEFK
EAEFNTDREEBR AR REE AELG
#170,462,000/8 Tt » LA K 4F (R 2617 ) pOAE
& @AY 780,575,000/ 5t & ©

HE_ZT-NF=A=+—HILFE @
Rz Mm@ raIgeEwr8=—S—- =4
=t BRLEFEHREZRNDAFZIZEFDL

A -

SREE (GE) B

REE_ZE-_TFER-_FT—NF=-A=+—
HIEFESRES (BB BANBESHREK
EAR(EB) &F -

REBE-_Z-_ZER-T-—HEFE=A=1+—
HIEFE - AR A RERRRE I 7 85 e -
RBEMER  NARABRETEEISN
ARG FHHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 3.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 0% - I§#S K28
Ownership
interests in Other
leasehold land properties Furniture, Leasehold Machinery
and buildings leased for Landand fixtures and improve- and Motor  Construction
held for own use own use buildings fittings ments equipment vehicles in progress Total
carried at cost ~ carried at cost
il ;
BAZEE  RAXGIES
1HRETL fFERZ ﬁE iﬁﬁ HEYE BER
EEER: HipRENE 1HRET E3 #iE AE ARIE g
HK$'000 HK$(000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$(000 HKS 000
AT FAT FAT TET AT FET 7T iz FET
31st March 2019 SE-REZASE-R
At 1st April 2018 FMA-A
Cost N - - 18,813 3,31 33,963 22,182 4366 1,548 84,183
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTERAE
and impaiment - - (3,061) (3,255 (33329) (21,516) (3,025) - (64,186
Net carrying amount BEFE - - 15,752 56 634 666 1,341 1,548 19,997
At 15t April 2018, net of R=Z—/\FMA—R
accumulated depreciation B2 AERAE
and impairment - - 15,752 56 634 666 1,341 1,548 19,997
Translation differences HEEE - - (197) - 6) 21) - - (224)
Additions RE - - - - 2,846 498 2,096 2,652 8,092
Transfer from investment BRENFEL
properties - - 1,161 - - - - - 1,161
Transfer from constructionin ~ BERTREE
progress - 2 A = 2,152 = - 2,152) -
Depreciation charge HEX M - - (363) (25) (2,056) (511) (532 - (3,487)
At 31st March 2019, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment - - 16,353 31 3,570 632 2,905 2,048 25,539
At 31st March 2019 KZZ-NEZf=+-H
Cost L% = - 19,678 3,307 37,520 21,091 8,199 2,048 91,838
Accumulated depreciation ZHAERFE
and impairment - - (3,320) (3,276) (33,950) (20,459) (6,294) - (66,299)
Net carrying amount EETE v - 16,353 31 3,570 632 2,905 2,048 25,539
31st March 2020 ES¢H+H
At 31st March 2019, net of R=2-n15=f=1-H
accumulated depreciation fbziirEnAE
and impairment - - 16,353 3 3,570 632 2,905 2,048 25,539
Impact on initial application %J]ﬁ“ ERABa %R
of HKFRS 16 E16f v E
- right-of-use assets - FREAE - 219,784 - - - - - - 219,784
Restated opening net book B|=F-NEME-B2
amount at 1 April 2019 HNEEFE - 219,784 16,353 3 3,570 632 2,905 2,048 245,323
Translation differences AEEE (1,118) (4,187) - 1) {4 4 (135) (5,535)
Additions RE - 13,389 - 918 9,660 2,018 - 4135 30,120
Acquisition through business & B2 54 Bl ([ 37)
combination (note 37) - 3,032 - 35 467 2 - - 3,557
Transfer from prepaid lease ERERERAIE
payment 16,203 - - - - - - - 16,203
Reassessment Bt - (1,117) - - - - - - (1,117)
Transfer Et 16,353 - (16,353) - 5,994 54 - (6,048) -
Disposal e - - - @) - - - €]
Impaiment HiE . (96,894) - (411) 4530) (115) ©72) - (102,922)
Depreciation charges TEER (809) (70,809) (177) (6,085) (665) () - (79,302)
At 31st March 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment 30,629 63,198 - 396 8,997 1,943 1,156 - 106,319
At 31st March 2020 RZ2ZF5=f=1-A
Cost WA 38,224 225,834 - 1,453 32,969 20,907 4724 - 324,111
Accumulated depreciation %i%ﬁ%% RAE
and impaiment (7,5%) (162,636) - (1,07) (23972) (18964) (3568) - (217,792)
Net carrying amount FEFE 30,629 63,198 - 396 8,997 1,943 1,156 - 106,319
Note: BEE
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective AEEBFEAKETEBHEERNERE B SRS LER
method and adjusted the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise F1RNFAENR =S *ﬂ@@ﬂ bkl &Rk LATE

RELFREBBEFLRBEITROER
‘f*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂiﬁﬁ*&ﬁ? SHEES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land is not depreciated

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms
of the leases, if shorter

2 - 4% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

15-20%

5 -50% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

20 - 50%

20%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

14. W% - BBRR

R §5 ER R B 5F

(48)

Wit -

(@)

ME - BERZBAEREZ N INFRFAE
IE:

KAERE TG RITE

FAEL 2%k R T4 & T F HA
(AR EH B%E)

BgF 2 - 4%HIEFOHBT
FHI(ARIE & BE)

RE  RBREE 15-20%

HEWERE 5-50%s LA ABT
FH (ARG E BE)

i TN 20 - 50%

YRE 20%

(b) At 31st March 2020, land and buildings of HK$11,478,000 b) R-Z=TF=F=+—0 11,478,000
(2019: HK$11,689,000) were pledged as securities for bank L2 T REF(ZZE—NF 11,689,000
loans as detailed in Note 29. L) BEERIRITER ZER - FHEHRK

29 o

(c) Right-of-use assets (c) FREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by FREEERBBEERNS D CREFE
class of underlying asset is as follows: DI -

31st March 2020 1st April 2019
g 33 —T—hEF
=A=+-—AH MA—H
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
(i FET FET
Ownership interests in leasehold land and REBRALEIRSIEFEREE
buildings held for own use, carried at fair Tt RIEF A EEZ - Fd
value in Hong Kong, with remaining lease ~ HiZn'T :
term of: (i)
- 50 years or more - 50F A 11,478 11,689
- between 10 and 50 years - 108504 19,151 4,664
Other properties leased for own use, RITEXRAINEREBEARAZ
carried at depreciated cost HiAEmE (i) 63,198 235,987
93,827 252,340
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

14. W% - BBRRME (&

Hfet - (&)

(©)

EREEE (&)

77

NEZBRZHEERXIAB Z2T&EIIM

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: D
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NEF
(Note)
(L)
HK’000 HK’000
FET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  ZIAFAEEEREH 2 FRAEEENEEM ¢
by class of underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land HE LI RIEF 2R EER
and buildings 809 834
Other properties leased for own use FIEBAZ AtHEEY 70,809 -
71,618 834
Interest on lease liabilities (note 9) FEBE 2L (MizE9) 9,334 -
Expense relating to short-term leases and EHRERFSREINCE_SF=A=1—8H
other leases with remaining lease term sk A4 R 2 Eo A A EAE R 2 A 52
ending on or before 31st March 2020 5,119 -
Expense relating to leases of low-value KEEEAERSEEMAX  TREREEEEY
assets, excluding short-term leases of EEEE
low-value assets 91 -
Variable lease payments not included in R EHEAERTESAZ AT FHERNK
the measurement of lease liabilities 1,222 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases ERRBEEEAENENTRSER
previously classified as operating leases KEHE 2 HE 2 & EHETKERE
under HKAS 17 - 84,931

Notes:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1st April 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1st April 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of
the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 3.

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
HK$13,389,000. This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set out in note 28.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(i) Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

The Group holds several buildings for its trading of
watches business, where its facilities are primarily
located. The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the whole or part of
undivided share in the underlying land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered owners, and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of the land lease, other than payments based
on rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to time and
are payable to the relevant government authorities.

(if) = Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its warehouses and retail stores through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of two to five years. Lease payments are
usually increased every one years to reflect market
rentals.

During the year and as announced by the Company on 19th
March 2020, the Group was informed by a major supplier
that it will no longer supply its timepieces to the Group’s
Hong Kong authorised retail store (the “Hong Kong store”)
after mid-August 2020. Upon further negotiation by the
management of the Group, the supply will extend to mid-
February 2021.

Due to such termination of supply, the management of the
Group expected a significant drop in revenue and therefore
performed an impairment review of the recoverable amount
on the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets related to the Hong Kong store. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of the Hong Kong store was allocated to
one cash generating unit (“CGU”) within the sale of watches
segment.

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU was determined
on the basis of value in use calculations. Value in use
calculations was based on cash flow projections prepared
from financial forecasts approved by the management. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation related
to the estimation of cash flows which included budgeted
sales and expected gross margins during the budget period
which had been determined based on past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31st March 2020, the Group
recognised full impairment losses of approximately
HK$6,028,000 and HK$96,894,000 related to the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively of
the Hong Kong store within the sale of watches segment.

R §5 ER R B 5F

14. W% - BBRRE (1)
Hiat o ()

(©)

EREEE (&)
() HIEEREELHREF I HAEE

ﬁT/i

AEEREZHEBTHETEERERSE
% RERBZIEMAN AEER
§£i¢%¥%¥(E?ﬁﬁ%ﬁif&%%ﬁi%ﬂ

DR D EER) EMEE A - R&E
] 1) A SEAT A A TR 2 KA MR )

FREa REBETWEONGERBEAR
B S RIR R R U AR Y AR E R

fER = M HE R I - BREAMN KA
BE NI R E) - WM T A BBUT SR -

(i) HEBAZEMHEENE

FREERSE ~AEEDERFERE
M EEREEERTEEMNET -
M#’WJ%ZW*%E SHIR—MR AR
AF -HENKBES —FEMUAR
i -

iW&ﬁm$ﬁﬂ \—Z-THE=-ATNH
D ARBEE- R T 2HERSH
ﬁﬁ_7_7¢Aﬂ¢é%Tﬁﬁ$Elz
BRRHTEE ((FBER ) HELE -
BASEEREE-TRERE  HESTRE
E_T_—F_A-

AREERE  ASETEEEREERA
AR TR A EBEMRBYE - #es

BEARCERAEEE 2T B S EBEST
BERSE - AETRENE  B5EHENY
¥ BERBEARFERAREEESREZE
ﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁj\ﬁﬁ‘?z—@fﬁﬁéiﬁﬁ(Bﬁﬁé
H B o

HERSELSMA T RESENREER
EBEMNAEMEE - £AEEFEEZERK
EEEMENTBIRAMBHENRSRER
AoERMEERFENEMIZRRERSE
st ER  EhERREBEBERERER
EBHmSERNEMMEENREH AN
HHERRIEHREMNE -

BE_Z_THF-_A-T—HIEFEHE -
S @ﬁﬁ*fﬁé%/‘* REBERZME
Has R RBAREREEEERZBRERS
f“mﬁawsm&%m&%swow%no
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. TASfa{dzhiE
2019
—E-NEF
HK$°000
F AT
At the beginning of the year 17,770
Amortisation (466)
Translation difference (1,101)
At the end of the yea REFR 16,203

Analysis for re
Current po
Non-cur

paid lease payments
s in the PRC. Prepa
t-of-use assets upon

for I

of HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IREME

2020 2019
—E-TF —E—-NE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET

At valuation HEYE
At the beginning of the year REFA) 362,776 290,224
Additions NE - 75,857
Fair value (losses)/gains DRE(EBE) RS (17,400) 781
Transfer to property, plant and equipment R EYE W NEE - (1,161)
Translation difference BmE = (1,604) (2,925)
At the end of the year RER 343,772 362,776

The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to
seven years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Note:

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's investment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

AEBEREARBRESNMEREDHRABAAE
BAFE - T DBRIAREMEALR -

AEEEERERERENE RO RTS
RUMESHE  DHRREROBEED B
B8 B AT - A 0T T RET
BREMK -

e

TRENAEENRE ARG EEE
A ENRENELAE - ZEWED
BACEBYBHMEEADE1HE -T2
REFEIFREN=ZBAAEBER-
KEBZRUATHEREMRANEA
BENAEREENSEN  EMEEA
REFEREMERBNER

. E-BEE: ARBHBRES
B HBIE - BB AR B
FEES A ERNERT S R
BERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. IRE1%E (18)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARENS (E)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) RAEERE)

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using

FE_MHEE: AREAEERAS

Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which e BIATESR SR R hEiE
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant BNE MK R AFEHEARA
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BRHE - A BRYEBEAS
inputs for which market data are not available. ERBEEY N EA Y 8iE o

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using D F=REE: AAEFEFERE
significant unobservable inputs. KRB > 8iE o

Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2020 categorised into
R-ZB-_BE=A=+—H2Z

AREFESE
Fair value
at
31st March
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-ZZB=ZF
=A=+—8
ZRNE F1BR HE2B R HIBR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REMEAIARE
measurement =
Investment properties: LAY
- Hong Kong —BE 232,380 - - 232,380
- Mainland China — B K e 33,326 - - 33,326
- Switzerland —Im* 12,124 - - 12,124
- United Kingdom —EH 65,942 - - 65,942
343,772 - - 343,772
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. BEHZ (@)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARESS (8)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) DAEERE)
Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2019 categorised into
R-_ZE—AFE=ZA=+—HZ
AREFESE
Fair value
at
31st March
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=ZT—NF
=A=+—H
ZRARE FEAE R B2 EIE R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REEARE
measurement sTE
Investment properties: KB
— Hong Kong —EH 238,460 - - 238,460
— Mainland China — PR B K B 36,619 - - 36,619
— Switzerland — =+ 11,840 - - 11,840
— United Kingdom —KE 75,857 - - 75,857
362,776 - - 362,776
During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019, REBEEZZT—NFEFR-_ZT-_FTF=A
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, =ST—HLEFE GEEHEE_EHRC
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy 0 IR A R EE S - IR
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value AREEAF=-"ERXBE=ERH
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which o AEBMNBRESEARBERER2MHE
they occur. HIREBRREAREREEE
All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued AEENFAREVEER_Z—NF
as at 31st March 2020 and 2019. The valuations of kT 2TF=-A=+—HETEMH-
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the R=ZB-NFR-ZFEZTF=A=+—
PRC as at 31st March 2020 and 2019 were carried H UREERPEEEYENGEEL
out by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, the firm of FRBYEXEERGEMSRRKE
independent professional qualified valuers with recent RAGHETT  RASRITTEERYMERN
experience in the location and category of properties FriEith BEANAE R3S BR BRI B - M=
being valued. The valuations of investment properties —NERZZTEZTFF=A=+—1"
located in Switzerland as at 31st March 2020 and 2019 UREHEETHREMENHEIFEFRBY
were carried out by Bolliger Immobilier, the firm of FEA AKX AERIBolliger Immobilier
independent professional qualified valuers with recent HT  ZAIERITEER Y EN T
experience in the location and category of properties ERMBERIYERHER - R_F—h
being valued. The valuation of investment properties in FRZZZZTF=ZR=+—8 R
the United Kingdom as at 31st March 2020 and 2019 HEONREMENEEIES BB
were carried out by Capital Chartered Surveyors and S HE A E (L ERICapital Chartered
Valuers and SNA Project Consultants respectively, Surveyors and Valuers &2SNA Project
the firms of independent professional qualified valuer Consultantsit{T * ZZERISRMTTHEEG
with recent experience in the location and category of ) 2 1) PR AE b BE AN KR 71|35 BT BR AL B o
properties being valued. The Group’s finance manager NEEZHEEEANRMISBED 88
and the chief financial officer have discussion with the B RS T REERE QETH
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation BEHREME
results when the valuation is performed at each interim
and annual reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. I28MZE (8)
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARESS (8)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) B=ZERREFTEEHN

Relationship of

Range or unobservable

Valuation Key weighted inputs to

techniques unobservable inputs average fair value

BER FUBEEE

R E M TEFUBRZEE R HAREBR

Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (34)%-(1)% The higher
located in the PRC approach to transaction price (2019: (20)%-: %) the adjusted
NAPEZEEE MG 8 (to reflect location, (ZZ—H4F : transaction price,

age and maintenance)

(20)%-3% )

the higher the

RBBHRZEE (i) fair value
(A RMimE - BERRE) & %EM:%FW(
e ARER
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (27)%-15% The higher

located in Hong Kong

MRBBZ REME

approach

5 L BUA

to transaction price
(to reflect location,
age and maintenance)

(2019: (19)%-15%)
=215
(19)%-15%)

the adjusted
transaction price,
the higher the

RHEEZEE S (FE) fair value
(A2 R ERE) THEER S BIR

nL
o By o By
am ARERS

Investment properties Income capitalisation  Capitisation rate (derived 9% The higher the
located in Switzerland approach from monthly market rent) (2019:9%) capitalisation rate,
LRIt 2 REME WA B A% BARCLE (BERATS (Z2E—N&F: the lower the
HENTE) 9%) fair value

BERfbE RS

DR ERE

Market monthly rent rate SFr10 The higher

mEgAMRE % (2019: SFr10) the monthly

per square metre  market rent rate,

BEHK the higher the

1055 £ 8B fair value

(ZZ2—h%s 5ADS

10371 AB) Rexam -

Investment properties

Market comparison

Premium/(discount) to

GBP1,421-1,579

AT

NI IERIE

The higher

located in United approach transaction price (to (2019: GBP 1,770- the adjusted
Kingdom ML EE reflect location, age and 1,797) transaction price,
RRNERE 7 REE maintenance) per square feet the higher the fair
wiE/ () RHER FE 7R ,421- value
(ARMimd  BRRRE) 1,579 8  KRHEZHER
(ZZ2-A%F: B/ 2ARAEES
1,770-1,797 5 4%)
The fair value of investment properties located in Hong MNRAES FEERERZREDEZ
Kong, the PRC and the United Kingdom is determined /Ajﬂﬁfjﬁiﬁﬁ IS EOEAETE - HEL

SEAHLERYERE T RIFE T
KEREEFEZOHREE . AOHt
REBYMEELE 2R ERBESITE (E
MEIHE X LB PRIS) EH R - fi
MELERFEETERS  BEH
HERMSZARETRRD °

using market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium
or discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in a
higher fair value measurement.
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16.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties located in
Switzerland is determined using income capitalisation
approach by reference to the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties and assessed by
reference to the rental achieved in the lettable units.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference
to the yield rate observed by the valuer for the similar
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year.

The valuation loss on investment properties amounting
to HK$17,400,000 (2019: valuation gain of HK$781,000)
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

(b) The Group’s investment properties outside Hong Kong with
carrying amount of HK$5,459,000 (2019: HK$5,846,000) are
registered under the name of other persons in trust for the
Group.

(c) At 31st March 2020, certain investment properties of
HK$222,080,000 (2019: HK$228,480,000) were pledged as
securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 29.

16. 128

(a)

(b)

(c)

R §5 ER R B 5F

s (48)
BREMENARAETE (])

(i) B=ZERAITEFTEZEH(E)

RmLMERENEN DA ERAR
ANBERE2 R EME R B HEEN
By EER - WAT A A SR
EHMHSRETE - MRANEARL
bE 3R T2 BR AR o i {8 B BRI 2 1 JR B
MEZWEE WREGEEMSEY
BERMERZNABETHE -

TEEERNGEETDERMLEZEE o

EEWMEZHEBESEA
17,400,000/ 7T (-2 — 1LF : {HEWK
% /781,000 0) AR A 1B 5 K N R

7
e ©

AEBEMREBNINMERET © HE
5,459,000/% 7t (=& — /1% : 5,846,000/8
T ZEEMRALEASEETAZE
fALTETER-

R-_ZET-_ZTF=-_A=Z+-—H " BE
222,080,000 L (=& — L&
228,480,0007%7T) B & FIRE YR ERTT
B - FEIEE M 529 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R BfI 5T
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B2 &=
Trademarks
BE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost: 29N
At 1st April REA—H - -
Acquisition through bus on (note 37) i#iBEK A HHUEE (3£37) 267 -
Addition 0 9 -
At 31st March 276 -

Accumul
At 1st A
Charge - -
At 31s

Car
At 3

276 -

The harge for the yea “Administra RERNZEHEBERETAREGRERZTHE
expe onsolidated stat
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

18. GOODWILL 18. EHE
2020 2019
—EZEF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost: RN :
At 1st April R A—H - -
Acquisition through business combination (note 37) % 8 ¥ 75 & 4f U 88 (M13537) 19,895 -
At 31st March R=A=+—H 19,895 -
Accumulated impairment losses: A REERE :
At 1st April REA—H - -
Impairment loss A EE 19,895 -
At 31st March R=A=+—H 19,895 -
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31st March R=A=+—8 - -

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to a CGU as
follows:

B3HEBzREEESE N 2R AR

HECEAEDARERSELEN - ST

2020 2019
—ECORF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET

Gourmet business EREK
- Hong Kong - BB

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions.
The calculations use in cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates stated below. These growth rates are
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports specific to
the industry in which the CGU operates.

ReELEM2ARESBEDENMEREEAFE
EE BEhHERERRR - ARAEEAREE
BREMERETFHRZPBREEFEH 2R R
ERAMETE °

TEMERZRESRETIRA T XAz E5HE

BERE SR RTRBEFHENSE
o B AT R RO — B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

18.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The following table sets out the key assumptions for the CGU:

18.

me (8

TERIBEELBINEERST

2020 2019

—EEF —ZT-hEF

% %

- Budgeted gross margin -TEEERN = 62.3-63.5 N/A “I~ 38
- Long term growth rate -REERE 3.0 N/A i
- Pre-tax discount rate —FR 750 A AL 2R & 16.4 N/A i A

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.
Long-term growth rate is the weighted average growth rate
used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period. The
rate is consistent with forecasts included /in industry reports.
The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant unit.

At 31st March 2020, the recoverable amount of the CGU was as
follows.

RETHEETEREEMNRZEENEERE
AEFEFMREBZ FHENE - RAREN
=M MEEEAT S ER - REERETARE
EIRE AN R SR E RN I T RE o (&
BTERERNIER B - IRAZ MR RLBH
Al SRR B EA 2 ERRE -

W I8

RECZE-_ZE=A=+—H BREELELZT
e (=) & FE AL T 0

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT

Recoverable amount aJ W =] & 58
During the year, due to the unforeseen business environment for
the gourmet business and the short-fall of recoverable amount
and net liabilities position, impairment loss of approximately
HK$19,895,000 on goodwill was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

SUBSIDIARIES 19. BT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March UNTRINNVN ZZE-_ZEF=ZA=F+—HFEMNBER
2020: G
Place of
incorporation or Paid up Proportion of
establishment issued ordinary issued share capital/
or registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR AR 3 EACROTEE EAFFBERITRE/ .
WELR AR RBREHCEHE BRE/EMEXR A E A 2 A TERER
Directly Indirectly
E#& &
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% = Investment holding
EERAES 10,0003 1T 100% - REER
Juvenia Montres SiA. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
T 1,875,000 )& marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% REREHSENEAE
BEEZEB(EE)ES The People’s Republic RMB128,403,300 - 100% Watch trading
BERAF of China*
mEARAME  128,403,3007 A R - 100% EHEH
BEESHER)ERAR The People’s Republic RMB9,715,200 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
mEARAME 9,715,20070 A R B - 100% BHRES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares - 100% Watch trading
BEAKMN(BE)BRAF Bk 3,000,000/ - 100% I
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
EE(BR)BRAA 0 5,000,000/ - 100% REERERERES
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong 3,500,100 shares - 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
NEE7RE (BE) ARAF B 3,500,100f% - 100% miEERNEEE S
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Company Limited watch trading
RREBRRERLH 9 20,000,0005% - 100% mEEREREZRES
Wakmann Watch (Shanghai) The People’s Republic RMB500,000 - 100% Watch trading
Trading Limited of China*
BA(LB) EREHERAF mEARAME 500,00070 A & % - 100% I
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
KBRAES/ BB E 100% - NERBERRE
The Eav’s Group Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
EEAEEEARAA B 28T 100% - REZK
The Eav’s Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Property development
BELERARAA B 2B - 100% NEER
The Eav’s Group (Gourmet) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
ERMEE(ZR)BRAA Bt 28T 100% - REZK
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * BEPEAREMBEZIMAEIIEBELE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a # BEDEARINBEZSMAERNDE -
domestic enterprise.
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20.

21.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 20. ;ﬁﬂﬂiﬁ%{-}\ﬁf@ﬁﬁﬂiﬁZﬂﬂEIﬂ/E
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR ﬂﬂfﬁﬁfA}ﬁﬁz@ﬁﬂéé/ﬁ”ﬂﬂjEZ}Q
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE =3
INVESTMENTS
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value FEMRAES  BARE 14,133 24,160
Classified as: DR
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Z A A HEF ABHR 7 @ REE
- Non-current —ERH 14,133 15,097
Equity instruments at fair value through other BRAREFTAEM
comprehensive income ZHKE RETR
- Non-current —ERH - 9,063
14,133 24,160

Note:

The club debentures in Hong Kong were reclassified from available-for-sale
investment to FVPL. Fair value of the club debentures has been determined
by reference to the bid price quoted in the second hand market. The
increase in the carrying amount was due to the increase in their fair values.

Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong ‘were reclassified from available-
for-sale investments to FVOCI because these investments are strategic in
nature. The Group has disposed its investment during the year and gain on
disposal was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss .

pite

BREMEFMAREEZRESMOBERA AT
A& - WEHBEFZAAEN2R_FHHL2EE
MEEE - BREEEN - ER/EAREEM -

EEFLTRARAREECREEN DAL AAE
stARMEEKZ  ASEERE 2 HIEIEE - AEH
READHEERE YRGS BERER N E WS -

INVENTORIES 1. B
2020 2019
N ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Watches 5 8%
Raw materials R A% 53,991 58,278
Work in progress F 2K 427 328
Finished goods 2K R 141,574 137,911
195,992 196,517
At 31st March 2020, certain inventories of HK$62,135,000 (2019: A = = +—B EBFLFE

HK$80,741,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans as
detailed in Note 29.
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21.

22,

INVENTORIES (Continued) 21. E&(8)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRAMZWIAGEERR I FESENDIN
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or mr
loss is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EE —NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold PEFEZEREEE 597,094 657,032
Write-down of inventories FEMR 11,730 8,488
Reversal of write-down of inventories 7 & MOR #E [a (7,554) (15,306)
601,270 650,214
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B5RH fth EULIRR
2020 2019
b Jemp 32 —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance H 5 EWAR - Bk E B R E
— Third parties =7 24,519 35,985
- Related parties — HERA 6,705 5,866
31,224 41,851
Other receivables E i & AR 5K
- Third parties =T 4,533 3,610
- Related parties — BE LN 1,037 2,164
5,570 5,774
Financial assets measured at amortised costs ABESSR A E 2 o mEE 36,794 47,625
Deposits and prepayments & MafF0E 28,558 38,831
65,352 86,456
Analysed as: Ak =
Non-current ERE 18,410 29,048
Current mE 46,942 57,408
65,352 86,456
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(a) Aging analysis

The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its
customers. The aging analysis of the trade receivables at the

22. BAREMDEUIRR (8)

(a)

IRES S iR

AEEGETEEHANHNEIB0EZEED -
R|ERR  REEXZAHLOBERERE

end of the reporting period based on invoice date and net of Z2ESEWERZIRESTMT ¢
loss allowance, is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Up to 90 days ENEAZE90H 13,561 34,712
91 to 180 days 91£180H 8,214 1,374
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 1,987 122
Over 365 days 365H A k£ 7,462 5,643
31,224 41,851
23. TRADING SECURITIES 23. BHEE
2020 2019
—EZERF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value rThiERES ARE 382 598
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing FTHERFHEZ AL BURSHAREWHTZEA
bid price at the end of the reporting period. BAEEM -
24. STRUCTURED DEPOSIT 24, EiEHE%

At 31st March 2019, principal-protected floating income
structured deposit is placed with a bank in the PRC and the
returns of which is determined by reference to the change in
exchange rates quoted in the market. The structured deposit
is designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition. The principal amount of the structured
deposit is RMB27,000,000 (approximately HK$31,568,000) which
carries interest ranging from 1% to 4.2% per annum, depending
on the exchange rate between US dollars and Euro during the
deposit period.

The structured deposits were redeemed in May and June 2019.
The change in fair value up to the date of redemption was
insignificant.

No change in fair value for the structured deposits have been

recognised for the year ended 31st March 2020 as the effect are
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 BERIES2%5AMm
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 69,121 69,990
Cash and cash equivalents in RirE MBI & &
the consolidated statement of FEBReRERIT
financial position and the MRS RRECEEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 69,121 69,990
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and R-ZE_ZEF=A=+—HAEBETEZES
in hand of HK$45,580,000 (equivalent to RMB41,742,000) held in RIBEEEYEERIT R FEIE S A45,580,000
the PRC as at 31st March 2020 (2019: HK$54,859,000 (equivalent 7B 7T (FB % 041,742,000t ARE) (ZZE— N
to RMB46,922,000)). The conversion of RMB denominated T : 54,859,000/ 7T (10 % 7046,922,0007T A B
balance into foreign currencies and the remittance of such B)) o AREGHEBABEIRE INE RZFINEF
foreign-currency denominated bank balances and cash out of the BRRTEREHB LR Z2ER @ L3P BBF
PRC are subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign BHEOINEERIEH L EREBAEE -
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market rates FR RPAZHEESETSI XL EEN
which range from 0.001% to 0.35% (2019: 0.001% to 0.25%) per TR F B0.001%=0.35% 2 (ZF — LF -
annum. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks 0.001%%0.25%) ° $R1T 4GSR IR & I #& 32
with no recent history of default. R4 sk 2 EBBERRIT
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. ESRHhERKR
2020 2019
—E-EF —Z-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables B SRR
- Third parties - %=h 8,672 31,661
Other payables and accrued charges Hi MR R EEA 36,274 33,398
Accrued interest to a director NF—REZZERFE - 160
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost ~ LAESS A E 2 2 pi B & 44,946 65,219
Rental received in advance AU 94 110
Deposits received =R ¢en 3,344 1,807
Other tax payable H b FE < B 18 50,203 55,279
98,587 122,415
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B 5 SRR Bt 5T
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26. BSRH b fE {7 E R (&)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FEE S REMEMAERBETN —FRNEE IHE
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on ZEWA IR EREE
demand.
The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of RBEHR REKINER 2 BHAZE S EMNEE
goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: KR DT -
2020 2019
—E-BHF —ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Up to 90 days BNEAZ=90H 5,321 28,284
91 to 180 days 91%180H 127 6
181 to 365 days 181%E365H - -
Over 365 days 365H A k£ 3,224 3,371
8,672 31,661
27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. B8H61&
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT Fi&r
Contract liabilities ENAaE
- Deposits from customers -EFER® 1,224 1,404
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEaE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TREJAEEHEGBERNAREHR L —1E
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current and previous MERRUARBEER ST HHRE LR F165 2
reporting periods and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16: H 2 Fera £ BRR
31st March 2020 1st April 2019 (note)
—Z-ZF=A=+-AH “E-NEMA—A (f)
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEEE BEHRE =EEE HEEE
NRZBRE DEE L] R ZBE DB Sk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
Within 1 year —ER 77,425 83,602 70,447 79,743
After 1 year but within 2 years —EREMER 75,024 77,429 75,365 81,187
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFRH 20,822 21,685 88,359 90,857
After 5 years FER - s - -
95,846 99,114 163,724 172,044
173,271 234,171
Less: total future interest expenses R S F (9,535) (17,616)
Present value of lease liabilities HEGBE AA 173,271 234,171
Note: B 5E
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified RZZE-NFHNA-B FTEBECDERLETE
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1st WEVIAERA BB GREERFE165E - WHE
April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which HZH &S ETHE N EBERESES:t
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. ER|FI7TRE o AKELHEZIHERREES
Comparative information as at 31st March 2019 has not been B AEBRWESH —_ZE—-NF=A=1+—82
restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS ERER - BEABEEEBY B RS ERFE165
16 are set out in note 3. SR — S EEEH AN S o
AE TR Annual Report 2020 |135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

29.

30.

BANK LOANS 29. RITER
2020 2019
—_ ? —_ EE 7j—|~:$
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans, secured |ITER - B 161,403 130,741
As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, the bank loans were due for RIE-NER-_ZE_ZEF E%*EI CER1T

repayment within one year or on demand.

During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 and as at 31st
March 2020 and 2019, the Group was able to meet all the financial
covenants imposed by the banks.

The bank loans are carried at amortised cost.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans ranged from 2.35% to
3.42% (2019: 2.86% to 3.87%) per annum.

As at 31st March 2020 and 2019, the secured bank loans were
secured by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in note 39, (ii)
corporate guarantees given by the Company, (iii) subordination of
the payables to the group companies owed by Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited and (iv) assignment of rental income from certain
investment properties.

m]n} HI

T"s

EER —F N BHIR R E K E)

BE_Z-NFR-_ZEZTF=A=+—HLHF
FHHF'EJ&EA_T NERZB-ZBE=A=+—
C REE RS W R RITIR DR PT A M ISR

HRIT BRI AT IR

AEBZBRTEREBRANER (FEREHFXR)
#E N TR F E235%i3.42% —T-NF:
2.86%%3.87%) 1% -
—NERZZB-_TF=A=1+—H8 ' BHK
#F&Eﬁiéf%k ()Mfr?s%ﬁ%&aamé??ﬁﬁ (i)
AARARIRERZ ABER  ()BEERRN(F
) AR A B REB R E 2R ENRIE K(v)H
BTRAMERSKRAND BIERIEE -

LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR 30. EETSH

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At beginning of the year REH = -

Addition during the year F RGN 5,000
Repayment during the year FANEE (5,000) -
At end of the year RER = -

The loans were unsecured, bearing interest at the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) plus 1% per annum and
repayable on demand.
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31. DEFERRED TAX

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(i)  Movement of each component of deferred tax assets
and liabilities

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

& JE 518

(a)

EiERZIBERAEEER

() BEHBEEZAME
1

afs:

HEHEE D2

FARGARFBRREZP CHERBEL
BEEE,/(BF) cENBHREE

position and the movements during the year are as BT -
follows:
Revaluation Undistributed
of profits of PRC Write-down
Deferred tax arising from: NTEEEEBERE properties Taxlosses  subsidiaries  of inventories Total
0% REREAF
ENifE HEES AATER HARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T4 AT AT FAT
At 1st Aprl 2018 R-E-NEMA-A (13,309) 14827 (5,800) 2,361 (1,921)
Charged to profit or loss nhER - (14,770) (2,100) (16,870)
At 31st March 2019 K E-AFEA=E-A (13309 57 (7900) 2361 (18,791
At 1t April 2019 R-E-NEmA-B (13,309 57 (7,900) 2,361 (18,791)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (%) /3t NE% - 252 2,700) - (2,448)
At 315t March 2020 R-F-F52f=1-1 (13,309 39 (10,600 231 (21,239
(i)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) 45BN EE R
position
2020 2019
—EZEF —ET-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net deferred tax asset recognised in RERE MR R R
the consolidated statement of R IE B =R A
financial position 2,418 2,418
Net deferred tax liability recognised in RERA BRI R ER D
the consolidated statement of BREHIBEAEFE
financial position (23,657) (21,209)
(21,239) (18,791)
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31.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$427,500,000 (2019: HK$401,544,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring
in 1997, that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Tax losses of HK$1,527,000 out of HK$427,500,000 was
recognised as deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$425,973,000 due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

Tax losses of approximately HK$16,384,000 (2019:
HK$20,806,000) attributable to the continuing operations
in the PRC are available for offsetting against future profits
that may be carried forward for five years for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax purpose. Tax losses of approximately
HK$39,265,000 (2019: HK$37,429,000) attributable to
the continuing operations in Switzerland are available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
for seven years for Switzerland Profits Tax purposes. No
deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of these tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Withholding tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. As at 31st March 2020, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the subsidiaries amounted
to HK$118,185,000 (2019: HK$88,183,000) has been
recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy of
the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and it has been
determined that it is probable that the profits earned by the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future. In the view of the improvement of the
financial performance and market condition, the directors
of the Company considered that the deferred tax liabilities
of HK$10,600,000 (2019: HK$7,900,000) in respect of the
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries should be
recognised as at 31st March 2020.
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OTHER LIABILITIES 32. Hihes
At 31st March 2019, the amounts represented the non-current RZE-—NF=-A=+—H ZeBENRTH:
portion of accrued rental expenses. M HIERBE S ©
On the date of transition to HKFRS16, accrued lease payments RIBEEZEB BV BRELERFE165 HE - E:THE
were adjusted to right-of-use assets recognised at 1st April 2019. ENREARE _E-NFUA—BERZER
See note 3. EEE - RIS -
SHARE CAPITAL 33. %k
Nominal
value per Number of
share shares Amount
SREE &g 4= ot}
HK$ ’000 HK$’000
BT Fig FET
Authorised: SETERRAS
At 1st April 2018 RZZE—\FMNA—H 0.2 2,500,000 500,000
Consolidation of shares &1 & fBf (1,250,000) -
0.4 1,250,000 500,000
Reduction of share capital P& 2R - (250,000)
0.2 1,250,000 250,000
Capital increase A& ZS 3820 1,250,000 250,000

At 31st March 2019, 1st April 2019 and 31st RZ_ZT—AE=H=+—H

March 2020 - AEmNA—AR
—E-EFZA=+—H 0.2 2,500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
At 1st April 2018 R-ZZE—N\FWMNA—H 0.2 1,566,866 313,373
Consolidation of shares & 15 & Bt (783,433) -
0.4 783,433 313,373
Reduction of share capital P& 2R - (156,686)
0.2 783,433 156,687
Share repurchased B [ B8 B 0.2 (36,310) (7,263)
At 31st March 2019, 1st April 2019 and 31st W—-_Z—-HhE=A=+—H -
March 2020 —E-AFEFWMA—HBHE
—E-_EF=R=+—H 0.2 747,123 149,424
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Pursuant to the resolutions passed on a special general
meeting held on 3rd July 2018, the Company carried out a
capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) which was
completed in July 2018 and the details are as follows:

(@) Share Consolidation

Every two issued and unissued shares of par value HK$0.20
each in the share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one share of par value HK$0.40 (each a “Consolidated
Share”) (the “Share Consolidation”).

(b) Capital Reduction

Immediately upon the Share Consolidation becoming
effective, (i) the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by cancelling the paid up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$0.20 on each of the issued Consolidated
Share such that the par value of each issued Consolidated
Share was reduced from HK$0.40 to HK$0.20; and (i) the
authorised share capital of the Company was reduced by
reducing the par value of all Consolidated Shares from
HK$0.40 each to HK$0.20 each resulting in the reduction
of the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 1,250,000,000 Consolidated
Shares to HK$250,000,000 divided into 1,250,000,000 shares
of par value of HK$0.20 each (collectively, the “Capital
Reduction”).

(c) Capital Increase

Immediately upon the Capital Reduction becoming effective,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$250,000,000 divided into 1,250,000,000 shares
of par value HK$0.20 each to HK$500,000,000 divided into
2,500,000,000 new shares of par value HK$0.20 each.

(d) Share Premium Account Reduction

The amount standing in the share premium account of the
Company of HK$143,310,000 was reduced to nil.

(e) Transfer of Credit to the Contributed Surplus

The entire amount arising from the Capital Reduction of
HK$156,686,000 and the Share Premium Account Reduction
of HK$143,310,000 was transferred to the Contributed
Surplus to enable the application of the necessary amount in
the Contributed Surplus to set off against the accumulated
losses of the Company and to make a distribution.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 51
33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 33. Rk (&
(f) Shares repurchased (f) KRBEBE
During the year ended 31st March 2019, the Company HE-_Z—NF=ZA=+—HLEFE A2
repurchased its own shares on The Stock Exchange as follows: RIBEBHIMBRERGRMHAOT :
Number of
shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
Month of repurchase B E A 4 repurchased per share per share amount paid
BEROHE SRESE SREKE ENESHE
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
BT JBETT FET
January 2019 —E-NF—A4 34,300,000 0.495 0.45 16,242
February 2019 —E—-hF=A 2,010,000 0.61 0.61 1,226
36,310,000 17,468
Total buy-back expenses [lf 2 & R 63
17,531
The repurchased shares were cancelled during the HE_ZT-NF=A=+—HLFE BB
year ended 31st March 2019. The issued share capital BRMHD B EE AR B D EITRATE
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of 27,263,000/ Tt © A5 IR 19 BE [ (B &Y
HK$7,263,000. The premium paid on the repurchase of 10,205,000/ 7T B {ER& (7 i (& 0B ©

shares of HK$10,205,000 was charged to share premium.

[ eickiss Annual Report 2020 | 141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

34. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

(a)

34. RiEMERN

Share Option Scheme (a) WBARIESHS
On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company RZEZE_FAAZ+H  AARIMKREHE
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the B REE (S _F BT
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 2  —EET - FHRELEZ Y BN EE
Share Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to EERERANBNDAERAR RHERREE 2
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its MR ARRRIRERO 2EBE —TZT =
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders FRERET M E EBARAEGAR RS
as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option {E =] BT 88 A B s (a1 Bt BB 2 B A (] B B =X
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related FEERAR R RIEA KRS
consultant, agent, representative or advisor of the Company R85 (i) A AN A B 8 AT ] B BB A 7] 3k fn] Bt
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or BARREEYS R 2 EaHER - K12
consultant who provide goods or services to the Company P e ER M (i) AR R RS BT BB A B sk
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any customer of G = NGl A s S CIE=S 17 (1Y) VNN R e 2 )
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any BEAR 2 EKBREBECERY -
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any
affiliate.
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () WEZEREEEWT
Period during
Category of No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
BERAL REH Date of grant  conditions ATE share options
ZHE BREHE BRERSE BEKHE BRENER BROKEE BREZGHE
Directors 8,139,075  31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344 10 years
- Tk of grant (20%) 30th March 2021 1.34475 1T T
ZA=+-2 HREASBE—F(20%) —T-"F=A=t+EHZE
2 years from the date “E_-§=fA=+H
of grant (20%)
hE T ASEMmE (20%)
3 years from the date
of grant (20%)
HE LB ESR=F (20%)
4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B A RN F (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
HE LA SRAF (20%)
7ot o e S AR B A IR A E
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34. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(@) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

34. RiEMWHEBNM (&)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(Continued)

No. of share
eligible options
persons granted
RERAL Bt
ZHE BREYE

Category of

Date of grant

REAH

Vesting
conditions

BRI

(a) IEARIESH SN (68)

iy BWHZERREENAT @ (&)

Period during
which share
options are Exercise
exercisable price per
AfTE share
BRENER

Contractual
life of
options

BRTEE BREZAXH

Employees
BT

34,917,365

Director

B2

10,022,061

31st March 2011
—E——%
ZA=+-H

26th October 2011

“E——fF
+A=+x0

1 year from the date

at grant (20%)
MR A e~ (20%)
2 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR LB R E (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
hE T A e =5 (20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
i A A M E (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
m & AR RE (20%)

1 year from the date

at grant (20%)
i & A e — 4 (20%)
2 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR LB HBERE (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mE T ASRE=F (20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
B it B H R E (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mEHASERE (20%)

30th March 2012 to
30th March 2021

“E—_—#=f=t+HZ
T —§=A=+H

HK$1.344
1,344 T

25th October 2012 to
25th October 2021

ZT-Zf5t+A=+HH
E2T2F

+AZ+1IA

HK$0.897
0.897/% 7T

10 years

TF

10 years

TF
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34. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

34. RiEMWHEBNM (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) BBARIESTS (48)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i) BEREZHE RNEFHITEENT
share options are as follows:
2020 2019
g e 3 —ZE-NE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
¥ BREHE ik B FERRESR
TEE 1B
HK$ HK$
V-3 BT
Outstanding at the beginning 4 91 #% AR 17
of the year 2.688 7,229,838 1.344 15,559,565
Forfeited during the year F R8I 2.688 (1,253,855) 1.344 (769,912)
Adjusted during the year I 15 & 6F R R
upon completion of share Bl R SE K 18
consolidation and capital RERELZ
reduction (note 33) FE(f1533) - (7,559,815)
Outstanding at the end FRIK M ARTTHE
of the year 2.688 5,975,983 2.688 7,229,838
Exercisable at the end FEREAITE
of the year 2.688 5,975,983 2.688 7,229,838
The options outstanding at 31st March 2020 had RZE_EF=ZA=+-—H " HK7T
exercise prices of HK$2.688 (2019: HK$2.688) and a R 21T (E /2688 T (ZF
weighted average remaining contractual lives of 1 year —NF 1 2.688% 7n) K hn#E 15 F 4
(2019: 2 years). ERNFMR/IF(ZT—NF : 25F)
Share Award Plan 2010 (b) MREREHS(ZD—SF)

On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan 20107).

The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share
award and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging
or facilitating the holding of shares by those selected
employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new
shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use of
the plan to award new shares to those selected employees
of the Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 and as at 31st
March 2020 and 2019, there was no outstanding award
granted under the Share Award Plan 2010.
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

35. RGN TR G RER

(a) AATFHBAMRE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-h%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fff 5 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN s 281,654 241,317
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables ot JE U AR SR 319 143
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREFEY 941 12,544
1,260 12,687
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHE A B 3 E 13,982 13,348
Other payables LA JE 5 AR 5K 3,430 3,103
17,412 16,451
Net current liabilities mEEEFEH (16,152) (3,764)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABHAERE 265,502 237,553
Net assets EEFE 265,502 237,553
Capital and reserves EAXR B
Share capital A% 2 33 149,424 149,424
Reserves =] 35(b) 116,078 88,129
Total equity attributable FEREAQATFEFA
to owners of the Company Z AR 265,502 237,553

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:
RITZZZFRAZTNEAREETGRBLEENE  TANINEERREE

Eav Yin
B
Director

BE

Eav Guech Rosanna
BWE
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 35. RAGIBIEARIAERGEIGEE S (58)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AATEEEE
The change in the reserves of the Company during the years REZE T NWFLER_E_TF=ZA=+—
ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 are as follows: AIEFEMAzARRREESSHNOT -
Retained
Share Capital profits/
Share option  redemption  Contributed (accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses) Total
BRE REuEF/
R 175 E i ErRERE 0N (RETEB) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1st April 2018 R-_E—-\FNA—H 143,310 12,818 - 17,524 (188,182) (14,530)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (3,710) (3,710)
Other comprehensive income £t 2 B i & - - - - - -
Total comprehensive losses ~ REE2EEREE
for the year - - - - (3,710) (3,710)
Transaction with owners BREEAZRS
Transfer to accumulated REREZNHEAR
losses upon forfeiture of HER
share options - (888) - = 888 -
Transfer to contributes surplus 8 A\ % A B4 (143,310) - - 143,310 - -
Premium from share BB EE 26 E
buy-back - - 7,263 (17,468) - (10,205)
Dividend declared SRRA - - - (40,112) - (40,112)
Contributed surplus to set off A BHE 2 55#E
accumulated loss - - - (249,206) 249,206 -
Transfer of share capital ERBAZH AR
to contributed surplus - - - 156,686 - 156,686
At 31st March 2019 RZZE—NE
ZA=1+-H = 11,930 7,263 10,734 58,202 88,129
At 1st April 2019 R=E-nEMA-A - 11,930 7,263 10,734 58,202 88,129
Profit for the year AEERF - - - -

47,075 47,075
Other comprehensive income  E 1 2 E k% - - - - - -

Total comprehensive losses AEE2EEFBLE

for the year - - - = 47,075 47,075
Transaction with owners BEBAZR S

Transfer to accumulated F%Eﬁﬂﬁ?éﬁ'&ﬂ%ﬁ)\i

losses upon forfeiture of TR
share options - (2,024) - - 2,024 -
Premium from share R1AEEZEE
buy-back = = - - - -
Dividend declared ERKE - - - - (19,126) (19,126)
At 31st March 2020 R-E-ZE
=ZA=+-H - 9,906 7,263 10,734 88,175 116,078
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S IR B EE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 35. AT RRINEREE ST (&)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Notes: Bt -
Share premium (@ BHRE

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings in Note 2(g).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(u).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve relates to share options granted to
employees under the Company’s employee share option plan. Further
information about share option is set out in Note 34.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period (see
note 2(e)).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2019: HK$Nil)
subject to the restriction on the share premium account as stated
above.

(d)

(e)

et g BRARE - NN\ —FBHREQFLE40
) ([RRVEDER -

Efh A
ERBEREFTNBEREMENYEEHH
EFTELE - WIREM sT2(9)FT 8 A B Lty RIEFH)
BRI R EE

B 3% (A

EN R ERE SN EB I B MR E LT
BESERE - 2 E R M E2(0) P B A & 5T EUR
BRI

NG

BAFBNEBEERERL

AR EEEE AT

BARR

AEBEZHBABBRREABBRER AR T LHF
SAS T ABENMEE A RAK 28 - BA
ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁZéﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ@E?ﬁE}E@ﬂ%ﬂiﬁU& ﬁ)i@J

C BEARRELDIK - ENMERER TR
j/j&—ﬁfﬁ A I /flE*EIE“

B

BRERBLABEBREARRZEI BEETE
ETETZBEEE ARBREZE - SEHHE
PRI FES4

NAE#B

ARERE (FEY) BENREMRFAERERE
B E AR IEE RE AR EF AL LEE
W ER E AR BRFFED (RHE26e)) °
A B

REBRERRESWOG ARB 2RO EER
AU RAFMBDEADBE T ARBMRR

R-Z-—FE=A=+—0 T LXHINZBH
HEEAR  THABRTFAATREAZHER
HEATBT(CE—NE BB -
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from deposits at banks and
trade and other receivables.

Cash at banks, bank deposits with maturity over three
months and structured deposit are placed with licensed
financial institutions with high credit ratings. The
Group monitors the exposure to each single financial
institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 36. MEERBSIP ()
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MFEERERE(4)
() Credit risk (Continued) (i) FEERE (&)
The following table provides information about the TRV EBASE@RNEERR
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade FESRERVEZRNEREEBBER
receivables:
2020
—E-EF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BEHEEX IREAE BEEE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BIHA (KAL) 0% 19,742 -
Less than 90 days past due 11 2> 90K 0% 1,300 -
91-180 days past due #1E1915180K 0% 2,385 -
Over 180 days past due B HIEBR180K 13.89% 9,055 1,258
32,482 1,258
2019
—T-NF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEEX REAE EIREE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BIER (R E) 0% 33,283 -
Less than 90 days past due 10 2> 190K 0% 1,574 -
91-180 days past due #HI91 2 180K 0% 1,231 -
Over 180 days past due 10 2B B 180K 17.92% 7,021 1,258
43,109 1,258
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss EHEERERDENBE=ZFNERE
experience over the past three years. These rates BREEH « WiEMNRETHAEUR
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic Bk U £2 FE S SR BRR MO RS B AR R - 3R
conditions during the period over which the historic M EAREEEFEINFIETEE A FRE
data has been collected, current conditions and the HAEAR) ~ OB R B SR 2 M E R -
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

36. MFEEREIR (F)

HHERER (F)

(i)

EEER (&)

FNERESRRER 2 BEBER
T

2020 2019

—E-EF ZE-NF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Balance at 1st April HRIUA— B2z &% 1,258 1,230

Amounts written off during the year FRMGH S 58 - -

Impairment losses recognised during the year 4 AR H(EE 1B = 28

Balance at 31st March R=A=+—H2&#H 1,258 1,258
Other receivables H i P& W BR X

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31st March
2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables and deposits were insignificant and thus no
loss allowance was recognised.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i)

R §5 ER R B 5F

o B IR E IR (4])

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE(4)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEZEE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual Ti'%?%ﬂ&%l%ité%ﬂféﬁ#i&iﬁﬁ
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RZHBTEHIEA - ?’]ﬂiﬁﬁfﬁ
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on NWERTE (BIEUES qﬂﬁ_p (=
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest WFE - AR RN REB R ZIRTA =R
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SFE A BT )&ZJSEI—JQEﬁ;'%%ﬁ
floating, based on rates current at the end of the Nr&FBHBHTE
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
Specifically, for loans which contain a repayment on LEHE BESZERAZENE
demand clause which can be exercised at the creditor’s T2 REKEREERZ BT
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow AMBRERER A ERMNK (EMrﬁ
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be WEAESBE 2 EREEFESRE
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their REEEF) 2 ERHEZBESRE -
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
2020
—E-EF
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BHRME R—FR £t ] SRWE
REE HRERELE FEREX YRME BLIREF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables & 5 & E i fE [ BR X 44,946 44,946 44,946 - -
Bank loans RITEE 161,403 161,403 161,403 - -
Other lease liabilities (note) E A E & (& (fi5F) 173,271 182,806 83,692 77,429 21,685
379,620 389,155 290,041 77,429 21,685
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W FSERRBAE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(i)

36. MFEEREIR (F)

Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE(4)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) IEBEZREE (&)
2019
—E-NF
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
AMANE  R-FRN SR-FE  SRWE
REE HReRnsSgs R E K PRWE  BIREF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FiET
Trade and other payables & 5 K £ fth & (BR3¢ 65,219 65,219 65,219 - -
Bank loans RITER 130,741 130,741 130,741 - -
195,960 195,960 195,960 - -
Note: B 5E

(iii)

(iv)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1st April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. Other lease liabilities include amounts recognised
at the date of transition to HKFRS 16 in respect of leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17 and
amounts relating to new leases entered into during the year.
Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See note 3.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the changes in market interest rate.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans (Note 29).

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed.
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.
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(i)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 36. IEIEREIR (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HHERRBRE(E)
(iv) Interest rate risk (Continued) (iv) FIEE (&)
(i) Interest rate profile i) FIEBR
The following table details the interest rate profile TRAMAKEE 2 BEERREH
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the R TR -

reporting period:

2020 2019
—BCER 3
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
LIRS RS
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FET FHET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Lease liabilities (note) HEBE (Fa) 4.26-5.46 173,271 -
173,271 -
Variable rate borrowings: BEEE:
Bank loans RITER 2.35-3.42 161,408 2.86-3.87 130,741
Total borrowings aEs 161,403 130,741
Fixed rate borrowings as a TERBERBREE
percentage of total borrowings 7 B 7t 51.77% N/A
Note: Bt &E
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the FEEBERAKETBEENTSER
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the BB MEERAE16T - LHER
opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise lease ZT-NFWUA— BBV AT
liabilities relating to leases which were previously RANBBEEBGAERBI7TH OB
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this REEMERAEERNBAERE -
approach, the comparative information is not restated. WEZA L EREBTETFUE
See note 3. 7 o RIS -

AE TR Annual Report 2020 |153



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2020, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit before taxation for the year and increase/
decrease accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,614,000 (2019: HK$1,307,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
Other components of consolidated equity would
not change in response to the change in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2019
has been prepared on the same basis.

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances, bank
deposit with maturity over three months and
structured deposit is not presented as the
management of the Group considers that the
Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuation is
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

R §5 ER R B 5F

36. MFEEREIR (4)

(b) Capital management (b) BHRER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REBEBEABIZAEREBRRNZER
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue AT ERFELE  BRABLEERRA
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners HRESERGHETHEAZOR - FBEE
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The BAeRARBEGHARNFE  RAR  EEE
management reviews the capital structure by considering BERERGEE BERW  REEBUER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each REBMEEZIER  ERIMNKRE - BT
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its IR R THEEHERIREEE - AFE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, HEEGARLEE -
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net AEBUEERGR(EAFAERNE
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as fRA#E ) B ESER BB FHEAER
bank loans and loans from a director less bank deposits with ROTERLREEEFRINMEE =17 2R
maturity over three months, structured deposit and cash and A HEEFRNR RASESAEDN
cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement REVBMRRARTR - QIR BIEAER
of financial position. Total equity comprises all components 2o  REBFERBE—(ECENEESR
of ‘equity. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at B RKE - RIRE R EEREBLL R
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the R
reporting period were as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FiET FET
Bank loans (Note 29) IRITE R (K £29) 161,403 130,741
Lease liabilities (Note28) HE & E(Hiz28) 173,271 -
334,674 130,741
Structured deposit (Note 24) EEMETER (fa224) - (31,568)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25)  #Iif : TR& RIS S EY (M:325) (69,121) (69,990)
Net debt B F5E 265,553 29,183
Total equity R 341,409 523,097
Gearing ratio BEAGBHLE 77.8% 5.6%
(c) Equity price risk (c) REEERER
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading AREBBEATKE FTTESESMES 2K
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the EZEREAR (REEVBMRART B EA
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity BEBE) UMD BB AEZKR
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to ZEERRARMIRT °
equity price risk.
At 31st March 2020, if the quoted market prices of the RZE-_TFZA=+—H WEEZES
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all IS ERE _FFFak T BK20% M £ fb Fr A & 8 4k
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before R . ANEE Y B R AT S 1 0 sk 4
taxation would increase or decrease by HK$76,000 (2019: 76,000 5T (= Z — JL4F : 120,000 7T) o
HK$120,000).
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of

financial position

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement

o1 ¥ E IR E IR (4])

(d)

REBRARERZARBEAE
AN
TREJAEEMEMT AL ARE RET

=
\i& |$g—gu+i 1/\* \E\J
?5’%%%%&%@?”%13?& C ARERTEHMR
T2 =EBHRZ AR ERE - G AREFE
¥ 2 B AR5 2 b (i o AR A
B NEEEmERE

date.

e  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level o FBoLME:AABEEFERE_LH
2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet B AR EBREBEREEINEF R R
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. WRFBRAERTABE 28R - 7]
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data Hm i A MBI TN ERA Y
are not available. 25 -

D Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using o FZMHEBE:AAEFEFERAERT
significant unobservable inputs. AR 7 &R -

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager AEEBERUKEEEE Y BRES/mT

performing valuations for the financial instruments, including BEITHE - @%Eﬁr@,&%}}zﬁﬁ% —

available-for-sale investments and structured deposit, which HAIHHEEREREBERER  UNARE
are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, EREDRE—BRNEERS - ZEHEE
and trading securities which are categorised into Level 1 MBERVEENEZEEGRSE - BFHF
of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the HMFEERS B ZBEBSHEBEEBAR
chief financial officer and the audit committee. A valuation Bt =2 HoMOEERS  YTHEa BT %
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is BETEZNYE - BERVBENEZEE

prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting SHEENBENGERTFETMNG R

date, and is reviewed and approved by the chief financial BB FSREHE—5 o

officer. Discussion of the valuation process and results with

the chief financial officer and the audit committee is held

twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

2020 2019
- St 33 —ET-NE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable in active observable . unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIE BT 5 EXTER EAFTEER RiERTS BARBE EBEATHUHE
ZHE BARE BAHE Ziﬁf‘ EUN ¢ BARE
(%) (=) (E=R) Fek (E-]) (i) (B=]) k)
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value ~ £XE#ARE
measurements iE
Assets -1
Structured deposit *Tﬁ R - - - - - 31,568 - 31,568
Unlisted equity BRARETA
instruments at fair HEft 2 EhE
value through other Z#J:ﬁ%’?é
comprehensive IR
income - - - - - 9,063 - 9,063
Financial assets at fair &A% Ezt A
value through profitor 837
loss BEE - 14,133 - 14,133 - 15,097 - 15,097
Trading securities EHER 382 - - 382 598 - - 598
Total BE 382 14,133 - 14,515 598 55,728 - 56,326
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost such as bank deposit with
maturity over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
bank and other borrowings are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31st March 2020 and 2019 because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial
instruments.

(i)  Trading securities

Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an
active market at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.

(ii)  Equity instruments

Fair value is determined by reference to the bid price
quoted in the second hand market or closing bid price
quoted in an active market of the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for transaction costs.

(iii) ~ Structured deposit

Fair value is determined by reference to the discounted
cash flows which are estimated based on foreign
exchange rate observable at the end of reporting period
and contracted interest rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of the counterparties.

(iv)  Unlisted equity securities

Fair value is determined by reference to the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

R §5 ER R B 5F

36. MFEEREIR (4)

(d)

(e)

REBRARERZAREHE ()

RBEE_ZE-NERT_TF=A=+—
RILFEME YEE-RERE R ZHED
BY @ ASEHE =4 - AEBEZHE
RRMEMRBEERRE  BHAREERZ
FaE -

REEZ ST A2 REE IR AN 8 #
AN B HIR @ =@ A 2 $R1T1FH
REMBCEBY  BHREMBUIEER
B REMENERLBITREMES
ERNAER-_TE—AFN_ZT _ZTF=A
“t+—BY¥EEATE BEZSEMIA
BB sk A2 £ R B 8 -

ARERGS

ATHUARAFAEBm T AR
EMRER °

AEZEE)

() BHFEE

RAETRIBERET S 2 W HEAE
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5RE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

37.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 5th August 2019, the Group acquired 70% of the issued share
capital of Reign Abalone Limited, company engaged in gourmet
business. Reign Abalone Limited held 100% equity interests
in Reign Premium Limited and 51% equity interests in Reign
Gourmet Limited ( together, the “Reign Abalone Group”).

Since the acquisition, Reign Abalone Group contributed
HK$5,048,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of HK$8,478,000
to the consolidated loss for the year ended 31st March 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the
loss of the Group for the year would have been HK$801,809 and
HK$150,304, respectively.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition
are as follows:

37.

FHeH

RZE—NAENARA AEEKREHBER
NAEBEITRAZT0% R  ZARNREERE
7% o W8 A IR A Al# AReign Premium Limited 2
100% J% # K Reign Gourmet Limited 2 51%#% ##
(B ImeER]) -

BB MMEEAAEB EERAER
5,048,000 TRBE_T-_TE=H=+—H1F
F B 2ix A B8 E £ §5188,478,000/8 7T °

i A& GrNFE LT - BIAR R B E 2 58K

BEREEWAREERS R /801,809% T &
150,304} 7T °

FAfEmo R EERBERIINT

Fair value
ARE
HK$’000
FET
Other property, plant and equipment HihE - KBERRE 525
Right-of-use asset EAREE 3,032
Intangible asset mvEE 267
Inventory FE 3,263
Trade and other receivables Z 5 N H A i AR 5K 1,925
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEED 315
Trade and other payables 2 5k HEM R (4,599)
Lease liabilities HEEE (3,150)
Non-controlling interest I R = (473)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAREGEZA B FEAERLE 1,105
Goodwill on acquisition ks 2 2 19,895
Consideration, satisfied by cash RE UWBREIM 21,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W FEE 2R SR FEE -
Cash consideration ReRE 21,000
Less: Deposit paid in previous years BBTEFEEMNZE S (8,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : FTiE v IR & R IR L S EWE & (315)
12,685

Acquisition-related costs (included in other operating expenses)
amounted to HK$121,417,000.

The goodwill is attributable to future prospect of the business and
the strong customers’ database owned by the business. It will not
be deductible for tax purposes.

The trade receivables comprise gross contractual amounts due of
HK$1,066,000, of which HK$nil was expected to be uncollectable
at the date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its
related parties:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is

38.

R §5 ER R B 5F

EABMAEALRS
FA AFEREBBEALTAEATZRS

(a) FEEEASHM

FEBIZEBASHM EEINTAR
RIEERETESHAL (MMEE10/7HE)
ZEEWT

as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Short-term employee benefits HEES R 15,583 16,351
Post-employment benefits RIKEEF 52 204
15,635 16,555

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note
9(b)).

(b) Financing arrangements

e @R EEATE TAA | (RIFE9(b))

o

(b) HIFSLHE

2020 2019

—2-%7 —T-nE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Loans from a director BERZER = -

Accrued interest (Note) 2ETF B (A aF) - 160

- 160

Note: Bt -

()  The accrued interest is included in “trade and other payables” 0] ZEFMERIEEGEAVBEHRAERNE S

to the consolidated statement of financial position.

Details of the loans are disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REfBEN R -

EFF BN RV RA M 20 R E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. EAEBMHEALTRXS (8)
(c) Other transactions (c) Hihxx5
2020 2019
—B-EH —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 1 FET FHEIT
Sales of watch movements to HE FHRMEET
a related company ultimately BLAEZFREBERR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B EESlZ
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —EEERA] 570 569
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HERAZEREET
four (2019: three) related companies BEREEFRIZHBAR
ultimately owned by the wife of R A5 5 A 1
Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Z VU REE A A
ZE-NF =) (i) 3,852 2,232

Leasing of office and warehouse from one RBAGCEIEETREER

(2019: nil) related company ultimately RS kg 2 —
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and (ZE—-NF  ZH) fE
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin AEHERAZREE 377 -
Purchase of products from three MG CEEEFREHESR
(2019: one) related company ultimately RS S A 1
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 2 =fERIE A A
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —Z—hF:—F)
REBEM (ii) 2,556 307
Consultancy fee paid to one (2019: one) SHNERE TG L
related company ultimately FFIREHEB R
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin A S
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 —MEERTA
(ZZ2—NF: —[HD) 714 822
Event rebate income from a related KABLCEE

company ultimately owned by the wife of T REERE MG RE
Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2k ol 11 7B /NG OB

EMKA 71 19
Sales of gourmet products to MG CEEZSFREBER
two related company ultimately 1S5 A PR 2 MR A &
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin NAHEEREM
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 10 -
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B 5 ER 2R Bf 51
38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. EAEBHEALTRXS (8)
(c) Other transactions (Continued) (c) Hihxx 5 (£8)
Notes: Wi
() Leasing of offices and warehouses (i) THERIAEREBE
During the years ended 31st March 2020 and 2019, the REBEE-_ZT—NFR-_ZF-_ZFF=A
Group leased an office and warehouse space to three =+—A M:iVH\EF'EJ REBHEWR
related companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. ARENEERM TG %i%—??fﬂ
Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin. A R S A PRIl = I R
As at 31st March 2020, commitments under operating RZZEZFEF=ZA=+—0 " BREL
leases receivable from the companies over which LHEANEWAR (BBLCEEET
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and SRR BB RAEREE 2 AR E
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows: RERE T ¢
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not later than one year R—FA 5,807 1,538
Later than one year and BB —FRTEBBRSE
not later than five year 4,295 1,563
10,102 3,101
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging MERE 2 KEBHRN T0.25F =
from 0.25 to 6.08 years (2019: 0.25 to 3.17 years) and 6.08F (—ZE—J1F : 0.25F £3.174F)
related commitments are included in Note 42. T 4B A S M 5E42 o
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Other transactions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(ii) Purchase of products

The Group purchased of products from the related
companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin during the years ended
31st March 2020 and 2019 which represented watches,
watch spare parts and components (including watch
movements), watch accessories and packaging. The
Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and
repairs to these related parties. The purchase of
products includes the fees and charges for these

38. EARMEALRS (&)

(c)

Hithx 5 (£8)

Wit (&)

(i)

RiBEsR

RZE—NERZE-_TF=A=+—
BIEFEHE AEERBCEES
TRERBRBCAEEEFNNBEEA
RIRBER  BIEFE  FREATY
HRAH(BIFEFHEEL) - ERE G
REgt o REBIVING FERMAE - T
REBRS Pl ETREEEA
TREREE HEERBEEZSR
BB RKE -

services.
(d) Balances with related parties (d) EEALTGER
2020 2019
—EoEE —ZT—-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Trade and other receivables due from ERHBTCEEEZT
three (2019: three) related companies RRER MG EEES 2
ultimately owned by the =EEZE-AF: =FE)
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled FAERARE S REAMIER
by Mr. Eav Yin 7,742 8,030
Trade payables due to a related ERGCEEEFREESR
company ultimately owned KRG REESZ
by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and —ERERRE SRR

controlled by Mr. Eav Yin
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39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 39. BEitig
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were REBETRITEEEREENT :
as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Land and buildings T RETF 11,478 11,689
Investment properties BEME 222,080 228,480
Inventories FE 62,135 80,741
295,693 320,910
40. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 40. SREIR ISR 20 # R
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme AEBAMEREAERBE IR —HRHER
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF Be([aEe])st sl - ZRBEHE 2 EERAK
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds SBECEESDFFE  AXREAUESHAEE -
under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the iR & 1B R PR E S & 7R K8 K
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents contributions I MEE R AEBEIRRIE S 5T 814 BIET AR A 5k
payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the KX FeRIE S ET B A
rules of the MPF scheme.
Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state- EHREZEZEINEREGZERKGENE -
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. ZEAR S EATPREBNER - ASEAZET
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their FesaTwol  RRKRFTEELHR - AEE
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only EZERFE R ZEE  EREBEIZHATEED
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to HEER e
make the required contribution under the scheme.
41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. ERIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the RBERRDFTNERERABENERE R
reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: X EZIAATE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment ME R RRE - 6,135
AE TR Annual Report 2020 |163
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

42.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

Property rental income earned during the reporting period was
HK$8,487,000 (2019: HK$8,793,000). At 31st March 2020, the
properties held have committed tenants for lease terms from 0.25
to 6 years (2019: 0.25 to 7 years), whose tenancy agreements
include paying security deposits.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under the
non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling due as
follows:

42,

mEHERie
fERWIAE

R EHBAE 2 WERS KA £8,487,000%
L (ZZT— L% 8,793,000 L) R _T-F
FZA=1T—HB FBEZVXEEHEFAEN
TF0.25F 26F (ZZF—LF : 0.25F 274 ) 2
W HHAEREREINTEREZS -

AEBEBEEETI L2 P ARBEEEHEOZR
R RERESEBRINHBEREAT

2020 2019

—EC-EHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year TiBiB—AF 12,618 8,131
Later than one year and not BiE—FRPERITF

later than five years 30,758 9,672

Over five years BiBAF 4,259 -

47,635 17,703

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail stores
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 0.75 to 9 years (2019: 0.75 to 9
years). Certain rentals for the use of retail stores are determined
by reference to the revenue of the relevant retail stores for the
year and the rentals for certain retail stores will be escalated by a
fixed percentage per annum.

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable
leases of office and retail store space. Future minimum payments
under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

fER®RIAE

AEERBLEEHELHEEETHROAEMER
TEEW CEBZMXHEERAR R0.75F 295
(ZZ2—NF: 0.75FE9F) - ETEEEFAME
SEUZFERENTEERHOBAIORE » I
BETZEEHNHES S AEE M F ERE -

AREBOAETSTTEZCRETAREZBAER
TEBERE - RETUHEAEZ R K &EN
;o

2019
—ZT—NF
HK$°000
FET

BB —F
3B — 7 R E A

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not
later than five years

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group adjusted
the opening balances at 1st April 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to these leases (see note 3). From 1st April 2019
onwards, future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities
in the statement of financial position in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(i), and the details regarding the Group’s
future lease payments are disclosed in note 28.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 43. ROBERRsSEM
FLOWS
Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities BAREEIaEENGE 2R
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TERANASERARETHEENABCET
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEAe MR EH ARERHEEANEE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for DIREREBELEARRRASREFEEREE LS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in SRS TERANDEAXEME TS ZRERE
the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows =L

from financing activities.

Interest
Interest payable
payable for loans
Bank Loans from for from Dividend Lease
loans  adirector bank loans  a director payables liabilities Total

BN EAES
BAEY EF2ER  EXMAE  HERME  EARE  HEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FE7 FEx FEx FEx FEx

At 1st April 2018 R-ZE-\FmA—-A 14,352 - 84 160 - - 14,596
Changes in financing cash flow BERSTEE
Proceeds from new bank loan RONERFAEHE 186,058 - - - - - 186,058
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (69,790) - - - - - (69,790)
Interest paid ERFE - - (1,248) - - - (1,248)
Dividends paid BERRE - - - - (40,112) - (40,112)
Non-cash changes FHE2EE
Exchange adjustments ERAE 121 - = = = - 121
Dividends i & - = - - 40,112 - 40,112
Interest expenses MERR - - 1,700 - - - 1,700
At 31st March 2019 WZZE-NF=A=+—H 130,741 - 536 160 - - 131,437
Impact on intial application MEERBBHBRE £

of HKFRS 16 Lease Fl6HAE T2 234,171 234,171
At 1st April 2019 R-Z-NENA—A 130,741 - 536 160 - 234,171 365,608
Changes in financing cash flow BEHZEZT
Proceeds from new bank loan ROMERFAEHE 236,056 - - - - - 236,056
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (205,170) - - - - - (205,170)
Proceeds from new director loan MESERMGIE - 5,000 - - - - 5,000
Repayment of director loans BEESEH - (5,000) - - - - (5,000)
Interest paid BERFE - - (4,604) (184) - - (4,788)
Dividends paid BEREE (19,126) (19,126)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2[R EM4 7 EAHH - - - - = (70,645  (70,645)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ EREEREZHEHH - - - - - (9,334) (9,334)
Non-cash changes HH &
Increased in lease liabilities from FRFTUHREL

entering into new leases during the year & & 120 = - - - - 13,389 13,389
Increased in lease liabilities from WEHBARZ

acquisition of subsidiary HEAEEM - - - - - 3,150 3,150
Lease modification BN - - - - - (2,373) (2,373)
Exchange adjustments ERAE (224) - @ - - (4,421) (4,647)
Dividends & - - - - 19,126 - 19,126
Interest expenses FER® - - 4,882 24 - 9,334 14,240
At 31st March 2020 R-Z-Z¥=R=+-H 161,403 - 812 - - 173,271 335,486

L
o]
%
4%
_F{?
_H_\
s
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44. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31st March 2020 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to the

Group.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts’

Definition of a Business?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Definition of Material*

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1st January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June 2020

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2022

166 | Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

44, BE_Z_SF-A=1+—BLFECHEHK

BREBZIETR - TR IFIEEE
ENEE

BEZSHBHRENTIRAY BEGHMLE

EEMBEZERBE T -_ZF=_A=1+—HIF
B ARERER IS MWK AL ARRBAEET
N —IEFRAER o AT E T T R B AR B4R R -

BEMBRE LR Rz &4
E175;
BEMBRELER

E35 2B A

B e B s S A A
B3 2B AR

B 7 B 75 i 5 4 A
165 < BRI A

B 7 B 7% 5 A2 B
%ggﬁ N %:/% = Ef
ZRIE39 R BB
B 7% S 5 HE RN B 7R

R E#E

FEABE 2 AR

COVID-19/A 57 % & )@°

kS-S e

ZIERTA
EEMBEHREER REZHAB AL E
F10ENEEGS PEZEHEELE

EABBHE L BHA  HEE
BERHERRIUL FR2LER
EBEILAIEeRY

/ETZF
BEGELE165 VX KERZEG KT
Z1& aTzl»‘ BT BT {5 45

BB ERNEITR FEEETE LRI AS
Z zaTZF

BERVEREEAy BEYFEHREEN=F—NF
CEIEN BT FTFFEHES

! KRB —F— A A &R FEIRAER -

? RKBEHRAN T -_TF—-A—-Ha 2 &K
ZABAFERBRAREARZRZEBAHLE
EWRE L -

8 REERMSZRRABZ FERREER -

4 RZZF_ZF-A AR 2&ARZFEDRRE

© ORCEoTFAA-ARZAME FRBME
oo
6 RZZE-Z—F-A—Bz Bz FEMRLE

F‘H:i N

=
e
i



44.

45.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued
in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards,
will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2020.

The directors anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1st April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.

44.

45.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHRHS

For the year ended 31st March 2020 #HE-ZT-—ZTF=A=+—HILFE

RESULTS E 45

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1t—HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E-RF ZT—+F ZE-N\F ZT-NF ZBIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Fi&T FET FET FET
Revenue EERA 834,394 850,218 991,429 934,520 800,051
(Loss)/profit before taxation — BELAT (F518) % F (35,625) 31,104 53,003 87,332 (142,270)
Income tax FR18 % (53) - 9,935 (16,870) (6,452)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE)#5 (35,678) 31,104 62,938 70,462 (148,722)
Equity attributable to FER
owners of the Company RABRBA (85,678) 31,104 62,938 70,462 (146,174)
Non-controlling interests I 122 R 2 - = - - (2,548)
(35,678) 31,104 62,938 70,462 (148,722)
(Restated)
(rr=5)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share & EA (E18) /& F (2.28)¢ 1.99¢ 8.03¢ 9.03¢ (19,56)¢
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SSRGS
As at 31st March
R=A=+-—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—F-REFE —ZT—tF —F-N\F —T-NAF ZEBEF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BwEE 704,830 687,746 656,705 816,225 806,781
Total liabilities BwaE 299,055 257,914 153,932 293,128 465,372
Net assets BEFRE 405,775 429,832 502,773 523,097 341,409
Equity attributable to BERARF
owners of the Company BAEAZER 405,775 429,832 502,773 523,097 343,484
Non-controlling interests JEE A% #E 7 - - - - (2,075)
Total equity B TR 405,775 429,832 502,773 523,097 341,409
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